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 Board of Director 

Regular Meeting  

1/9/25 at 6:00 p.m. 

Santa Margarita Community Room  

2 Civic Center Drive, Scotts Valley, California 

Agenda 

This meeting is conducted in a hybrid setting. Public participation is encouraged, members of 

the public may attend in person, remotely through this link 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86757235890 or by phone: 253-215-8782 Meeting ID: 867 5723 

5890. The public has opportunities to make comments throughout the meeting. To comment 

online, use the raise hand option, by phone press *9. If experiencing technological difficulties 

online, join the meeting via phone. 

1. Convene

1.1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

1.2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation 

1.3. Closed Session Report 

1.4. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 

1.5. Oral Communications 

2. Presentation

Midyear Project Status Update, Nate Gillespie

3. Administrative (None)

Items are informational in nature and do not include an agenda report. 

3.1. Committee and Other Agency Meeting Reports

Engineering & Water Resource Committee (none) 

Finance & Personnel Committee 12/18/24 

Executive & Public Affairs Committee (none) 

Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency Board (non) 

3.2. SMGWA Appointments 
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3.3. Committee Appointments 

4. Consent

Items are routine in nature, may include agenda reports and be approved by one motion.

4.1. Approval of Minutes – Regular Board Meeting 12/12/24 

Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the 12/12/24 Board Meeting. 

5. Public Hearings (None)

Items include an agenda report with recommendation, an oral staff report or presentation.

6. Business (None)

Items are complex in nature, considered individually, and each item includes an agenda re-

port with recommendation and an oral staff report or presentation.

6.1. Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports

Recommendation: Accept the Scotts Valley Water District Annual Comprehensive Fi-

nancial Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024 as presented. 

7. Staff Reports

7.1. 

7.2. 

7.3. 

7.4. 

Legal 

District Counsel 

Administrative 

General Manager – oral 

Finance 

Finance Manager - oral 

Financial Report 7/1/24 – 11/30/24 

Operations  

Operations Report – oral   

Production, Demand & Rainfall 

8. Directors Reports

9. Written Correspondence (None)

10. Community Relations

December Newsletter

November Newsletter

ACWA JPIA President’s Special Recognition Award - SVWD 
ACWA JPIA President’s Special Recognition Award - SMGWA

11. Closed Session (None)
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12. Report on Closed Session and Additional Items (None)

13. Future Items

Water Supply Conditions

Communications and Community Outreach Report

Quarterly Financial Report

14. Meetings and Event Calendar

Board Meetings 

2/13/25 

3/13/25 

4/10/25 

Committee Meetings 

1/22/25 Finance and Personnel 

1/27/25 Engineering and Water Resources 

1/22/25 Executive and Public Affairs 

Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency 

Board Meeting 2/27/25 

15. Events (None)

16. Adjourn

AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC RECORDS PROVIDED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: THE DISTRICT MAKES ANY PUBLIC RECORD 

PROVIDED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC REVIEW AT WWW.SVWD.ORG AND AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE DURING NOR-

MAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE SAME TIME IT IS PROVIDED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.  

PUBLIC ACCESS – ACCOMMODATIONS UNDER THE ADA: PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 

1990, THE DISTRICT REQUESTS THAT ANY PERSON IN NEED OF ANY TYPE OF SPECIAL EQUIPMENT, ASSISTANCE OR ACCOMMODATION(S) IN 

ORDER TO EFFECTIVELY COMMUNICATE AT THIS MEETING MAKE A REQUEST AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS OR BY CALLING (831) 438-2363 AT 

LEAST THREE (3) WORKING DAYS BEFORE THE MEETING TO ALLOW TIME TO MAKE ARRANGEMENTS. 



Finance and Personnel Committee 

District Conference Room  

2 Civic Center Drive, Scotts Valley, California 

12/18/24 4:00 p.m. 

Meeting Report 

1. Convene

The meeting convened at 4:06 p.m. in the District Conference Room.  It was conducted

in a hybrid setting.

Present:    Committee Members Reber, Ekwall, and Hunt

Staff:  Finance and Customer Service Manager Kurns, General Manager McNair, and 

Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Jensen 

Absent:  Committee Member Corstorphine 

2. Oral Communications

None.

3. Action Items

None.

4. Discussion Items

4.1. Draft Annual Financial Report for FYE 06.30.24 

General Manager McNair introduced the item. Finance & Customer Service 

Manager Kurns provided a summary of the Annual Financial Report audit process 

and findings. The committee received information. 

4.2. Financials 07.01.24 – 11.30.24 

Kurns presented the financials. The committee discussed. 

4.3. Liability Insurance Contribution Update 

Kurns provided information regarding an update to the Liability Insurance 

Contribution. The committee discussed. 

6. Reports or Information from Committee Members

None.

7. Future Agenda Items

8. Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 4:52 p.m.
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Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting  

12/12/24 at 6:00 p.m. 

Santa Margarita Community Room  

2 Civic Center Drive, Scotts Valley, California 

Minutes 

1. Convene

1.1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

President Leishman called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. in the Santa Margarita Com-

munity Room. The meeting was conducted in a hybrid setting.  

Directors  Staff 

Bill Ekwall   Terry Rein, Legal Counsel 

Wade Leishman Nate Gillespie, Operations Manager 

Chris Perri  Rahni Jensen, Executive Assistant / Board Clerk 

Danny Reber Nick Kurns, Finance and Customer Service Manager 

Ruth Stiles  David McNair, General Manager 

Junior Board 

Alex Schulz 

Jasmin Schulz 

1.2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation 

Director Perri led the pledge, and Director Reber led the invocation. 

1.3. Closed Session Report 

None. 

1.4. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 

None. 

1.5. Oral Communications 

None. 

2. Presentation (None)

3. Administrative (None)

Items are informational in nature and do not include an agenda report.

4. Consent

Items are routine in nature, may include agenda reports and be approved by one motion.

4.1. Approval of Minutes – Regular Board Meeting 11/14/24 

Approved the minutes of the 11/14/24 Regular Board Meeting as submitted. 
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MOTION Ekwall/Stiles carried to approve the consent agenda, with the exception of item 

4.2. Water Loss Audit Report CY2023 which was moved to the Business section for further 

discussion, by unanimous voice vote. 

5. Public Hearings (None)

Items include an agenda report with recommendation, an oral staff report or presentation.

6. Business (None)

Items are complex in nature, considered individually, and each item includes an agenda report

with recommendation and an oral staff report or presentation.

6.1. Water Loss Audit Report CY2023 

This item was originally item 4.2., Director Perri requested this be pulled from the Consent 

agenda for further discussion. The board discussed, Operations Manager Gillespie provided 

further clarification. 

MOTION Perri/Reber carried to receive the validated Water Loss Audit Report CY2023. 

7. Staff Reports

7.1. Legal 

General Manager McNair introduced Terry Rein as the District’s new Legal Counsel. Rein 

expressed excitement at the opportunity to work with the Scotts Valley District and the 

Board of Directors.  

7.2. Administrative 

General Manager McNair discussed his attendance at the ACWA conference, work 

planned to begin working on with Rein, the City updated their invoicing for the shared 

working costs for the recycle water plan, as well as new changes with City and working 

permits. 

7.3. Finance 

Financial Report 7/1/24 – 10/31/24 

Customer Service & Finance Manager Kurns provided a summary of the financial report, 

and noted that with the new payment software there has been an increase of 605 new 

WaterSmart registrations, and 85% of autopay customers have resumed autopay again. 

7.4. Operations  

Operations Report 

Gillespie provided updates on current projects including LID project, WELL 10a, Sucinto 

Well water quality results, Grace Way Well project. Gillespie also reported that the day 

before thanksgiving a leak was reported in Montevalle and crew did a great job at resolv-

ing the issue. Operations Supervisor Ryan Ritchie passed his D5 cert, this is the highest 
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cert available. Carlos Flores was promoted to Lead Water Facilities Operator which left a 

position to backfill. A recruitment took place to fill for a Water Facilities Operator I/II/III 

and an offer has been made to a candidate for a Water Facilities Operator I position.  

8. Directors Reports

Director Stiles spoke with a previous SMGWA member.

Oath of Office

Rein administered Oaths of Office for Director Perri and Director Reber.

Election of Officers

President Leishman discussed his term, and thanked staff and the other Directors for their work

over the past year. Leishman opened the floor for nominations. MOTION Ekwall/Stiles carried to

nominate Reber as President by unanimous voice vote. MOTION Ekwall/Leishman nominate Stiles

to Vice President by unanimous voice vote.

9. Written Correspondence (None)

10. Community Relations (None)

11. Closed Session (None)

12. Report on Closed Session and Additional Items (None)

13. Future Items

SMGWA Appointments

Committee Appointments

Annual Comprehensive Audited Financial Reports

Midyear Project Updates

14. Meetings and Event Calendar

Board Meetings Committee Meetings 

1/9/25 1/22/25 Finance & Personal 

2/13/25  1/27/25 Engineering & Water Resource 

3/13/25  1/22/25 Executive & Public Affairs 

Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency 

Board Meeting 2/27/25 

15. Events (None)

16. Adjourn
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The meeting adjourned at 6:44 p.m. 

Approved:      Attest: 

 

              

Danny Reber, Board President    David McNair, Board Secretary 
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AGENDA REPORT 
Scotts Valley Water District 

Date: 01/09/25 

To: Board of Directors 

Item: Business 6.1 

Subject: Annual Comprehensive Financial Report  

Reason: Complies with Government Auditing Standards 

SUMMARY 

Recommendation: Accept the Scotts Valley Water District Annual Comprehensive Financial Re-

port for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023. 

Fiscal Impact: None from this action. 

Previous Related Action: On December 12, 2023 the Board received the Annual Comprehensive 

Financial Report for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. 

BACKGROUND 

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) provide the criteria for the development of 

annual financial reports. GAAP mandates that annual financial reports include a complete set of 

basic financial statements, including accompanying note disclosures, and certain required sup-

plementary information. The District’s Annual Financial Report complies with GAAP, and ac-

counting requirements set by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This report was 

prepared by District staff and audited by an external firm certified by the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants. 

DISCUSSION 

Enclosed is the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report which includes the Independent Audi-

tors’ Report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.  Nigro & Nigro PC, the 

District’s auditor, is presenting the report. In the opinion of the Independent Auditor, the finan-

cial statements present fairly the financial position, the respective changes in financial position, 

and cash flows for the subject year in accordance with GAAP.  

Submitted, 

David McNair 

General Manager 

Enclosed: Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 

June 30,2023 
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ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

Sucinto Well 

Scotts Valley, California
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Mission Statement 

The mission of the Scotts Valley Water District is to deliver a 

sustainable, high quality water supply in an environmentally 

responsible and sound financial manner while providing 

outstanding customer service. 

Scotts Valley Water District 

David McNair, General Manager 

2 Civic Center Drive 

Scotts Valley, California 95066 

(831) 438-2363 – www.svwd.org
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S COTTS V A LLEY WA TER D IS TRICT
2 Civic Center 

Scotts Valley , California 95066 
831-438-2363

December 18, 2024

To the Board of Directors and Customers of Scotts Valley Water District: 

It is my pleasure to submit the Scotts Valley Water District’s (District) Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 (FY 2024). The financial statements are presented 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 
and audited with generally accepted auditing standards.  

The District is responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures in this report. I believe that the data presented is accurate in all 
material respects. This report is designed in a manner that helps to enhance the understanding of the 
District’s financial position and activities.  The management of the District has established an internal 
controls framework that is designed to protect the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse, and to 
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements in con-
formity with GAAP. 

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Nigro and Nigro, PC, a firm of certified public 
accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 are free of material misstatement.  
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, the evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  Based upon 
the audit, the independent auditors concluded that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an un-
modified opinion that states that the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2024 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditor’s report is presented as 
the first component of the Financial Section of this report. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accom-
pany the financial statements in the form of a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. 
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with 
it. The District’s MD&A can be found immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report. 

This report is organized into three sections: (1) Introductory, (2) Financial, and (3) Statistical. The In-
troductory section offers general information about the District’s organizational structure and water 
system, the economic environment, as well as the District’s major initiatives and accomplishments. 
The Financial section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report, Management’s Discussion and Anal-
ysis, and the financial statements with accompanying notes including required supplementary reports.  
The supplementary report’s segment contains selected financial information in greater detail than pre-
sented in the financial statements in accordance with the District’s internal fund structure.  The Statis-
tical section includes additional tables of unaudited data depicting select information about the Dis-
trict.  
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District Organizational Structure and Leadership 

The Scotts Valley Water District is an independent special district, which operates under the authority 
of Division 12: County Water District Act of the California Water Code. The District was formed in 1961 
and is governed by a five-member Board of Directors, elected at-large from within the District’s service 
area. The District’s Board of Directors meets on the second Thursday of each month.  The public is 
notified of these meetings and is encouraged to attend.      

The General Manager administers the day-to-day operations of the District in accordance with policies 
established by the Board of Directors. The District employs 18 employees organized in three divisions: 
Administration, Operations, and Finance.  There was one change to the organization chart in FY 2024; 
the reduction of the Special Projects Manager (0.5 FTE) position. 

The District’s organization chart is presented by position at the end of this letter.  The organization’s 
department structure is presented below: 

District Services 

Residential customers represent approximately 92% of the District’s customer base and consume 
approximately 62% of the potable water produced annually by the District. The District has a total 
of six groundwater wells with a maximum production capacity of 1,400 gallons per minute.  Addition-
ally, the District is the sole permitted distributor of recycled water from the Tertiary Treatment Plant 
of the City of Scotts Valley.   

The District’s potable water connection portfolio increased by 31 accounts in FY 2024. 

Board

General 

Manager

Administration Finance / 
Customer Service

Operations

Engineering

The District provides water ser-
vice to approximately 4,500 con-
nections, covering most of the 
City of Scotts Valley and several 
unincorporated neighborhoods.   

The City of Scotts Valley, which 
covers approximately six square 
miles, is located north of the City 
of Santa Cruz on Highway 17 in 
Santa Cruz County. 
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Total potable water consumption increased by 5 million gallons (MG) from FY 2023, equal to 1.8%, with 
residential customers as the primary driver for the change. Residential consumption increased by 5 MG 
(2.3%), landscape consumption increased 2 MG (10.4%), and CII consumption decreased 1 MG (-1.3%). 

Five-year history of potable water consumption (in million gallons) is presented below: 

Scotts Valley Water District also sells recycled water that is produced at the City of Scotts Valley Ter-
tiary Treatment Plant.  The District strives to maximize the potential use of recycled water wherever 
feasible by installing recycled irrigation services at new development projects and converting existing 
potable landscape connections to recycled water.  Recycled water accounts for approximately 13% of 
the total annual system demand. As of June 30, 2023, there were 71 recycled water connections with 
an annual demand of 45.6 MG. Total recycled water consumption increased by 3.7 MG from FY 2023, 
or 8.9%.  
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The five-year history of recycled water consumption is presented below: 

Water Rates 

The Board established its current rate structure at a public hearing on October 14, 2021.  Rates and 
fees for potable and recycled water were set for a five-year period (2021-2026).  At the 2021 hearing, 
potable water rates were approved and scheduled to increase five percent in January 2024.  However, 
the Board acted to reduce this increase to three percent.  The three percent rate increase became 
effective January 1, 2024.  For recycled rates, basic meter charges increased 5 percent and volumetric 
rates increased ten percent on January 1, 2024.  This was the third year of the five-year rate schedule. 

Water Use Efficiency  

The District promotes the efficient use of water use by providing customers with data to effectively 
monitor and manage their water use. The main tool offered to achieve that goal is WaterSmart, a 
digital platform that provides timely notifications and access to detailed water usage data.  Forty-seven 
percent of District customers are registered the platform, up from forty-five in June of 2023. 
WaterSmart notifies customers that have continuous water use of 3 gallons per hour (gph) and the 
customer engagement portal offers guidance on how to identify and address leaks. District staff aug-
ments these automated notifications with phone calls and letters to ensure that all customers receive 
notification in the event of continuous water use.  The implementation of these notifications has re-
sulted in significant decreases to the volume and duration of customer water leaks.  

The District also offers rebates and free devices to encourage efficient water usage. The FY 2024 rebate 
program continued to fund “Turf’s Up” which pays $2/square foot of irrigated lawn that is removed.  
The rebate program incentivized the following in FY 2024: retrofitting of 23,600 square feet of turf; 
installation of 26 pressure regulating valves to protect against leaks; and provided $1,150 for toilet 
replacements to more efficient models. 
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Local Economic Condition and Outlook 

Inflation continued to be an economic concern throughout fiscal year 2024.  The consumer price index 
(CPI) for the Bay Area has come down from its peak in June of 2022.  The average annual rate for the 
12-month period July 2023 through June 2024 was 3.03%. This is a decrease from previous years in 
which Bay Area CPI averaged 4.8 percent for both fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 and 2023.  Labor 
market data from the State Employment Development Division indicates a 5.6% unemployment rate 
for Santa Cruz County in June 2024, which is 1.9% higher than the prior year. The County’s unemploy-
ment rate was also slightly higher than the statewide average of 5.2% for June 2024. 

The local economy and the City of Scotts Valley’s economic development policies, including land use 
policy, also impact the number of new service connections.  The city population of 11,816 according 
to a May 2024 news release by the State Department of Finance, decreased 2.1% from the 2020 census 
benchmark of 12,069.  The number of households increased from the 2020 census benchmark of 4,690 
census to an estimated 4,762 in 2024, a 1.5% increase.  As the city’s remaining buildable space is lim-
ited, growth in population is likely to remain moderate.   

The City’s Planning Department has approved several commercial and residential developments in the 
past few years which have or will result in new connections.  Development projects resulted in 24 new 
potable connections and 1 new recycled water connection to the system in FY 2024 generating capac-
ity fee revenue of $502,128. The Encore at 4104 Scotts Valley Drive and eight new single-family devel-
opments were the sources of the revenue from new connections.   

Major Planned Initiatives and Significant Projects 

Water supply reliability, water quality enhancement, and infrastructure repair and replacement re-
main the focus of the District’s capital improvement program.  

In FY 2024 the District resumed construction on the Sucinto well (formerly identified as Well 3B) re-
placement project. The Sucinto well supplies water to the Orchard Run water treatment plant and is a 
key source of supply for the District.  In addition, the District replaced approximately 260 feet of pota-
ble water main at the end of Bethany Drive.  Work continued on the Grace Way well project as well as 
the Intertie with the City of Santa Cruz.  Funding for these two projects comes from the 2021 Urban 
and Multibenefit Drought Relief grant. 

FY 2024 Accomplishments 

The activities of the District are driven by its Mission, Vision, and Strategic Goals. Notable accomplish-
ments within each Strategic Goal area are presented below: 

Water Resource Management: 

1. Actively participated in the Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency (SMGWA) as the business
agent, providing treasury support and contributing to adoption of a reserves policy.

2. Collaborated with the City of Scotts Valley and other regional partners to discuss wastewater
plant upgrades and future intertie capabilities for conjunctive use.

3. Coordinated with the Santa Cruz Water Department (SCWD) on Intertie 1, reaching 100 per-
cent design completion in February 2024 and proceeding to the bid phase.
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4. Improved the District’s validated water loss audit score by one point to 85, the highest in
Santa Cruz County.

5. Conducted a pressure management study, leading to plans for a pilot pressure reduction sta-
tion on Meadow Way.

6. Enhanced leak notification procedures by integrating WaterSmart and staff resources to en-
sure timely customer alerts.

Infrastructure Integrity: 

1. Completed the design and environmental documentation for the Grace Way Well project, with
construction contracts approved in June 2024.

2. Initiated the Bethany Tank Rehabilitation project, including condition assessments and plan-
ning for replacement with two 200,000 gallon tanks.

3. Replaced the failing Well 3B with the new Sucinto Well, a 1,500 foot deep well with a design
capacity of over 400 gallons per minute, enhancing operational reliability.

4. Upgraded communication technology at the Hacienda Booster Station, completing a pilot pro-
ject that will inform future telemetry upgrades.

5. Submitted a permit amendment application to the State Water Resources Control Board to
implement online training for Recycled Water User Site Supervisors and allow online submis-
sion of annual self-certification site inspections.

6. Explored infrastructure renewal and resiliency program, including proposals for solar installa-
tions at multiple sites and planning for a Request for Proposals in summer 2024.

Financial Stewardship: 

1. Received the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Excellence in Financial Report-
ing award for the FY 2022 Audited Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).  Completed the FY
2023 ACFR and submitted the application for the award.

2. Invested surplus finds in laddered Certificates of Deposit and revised the Investment Policy to
include Local Government Investment Pools, establishing a new account with CLASS to diver-
sify and improve returns.

3. Engaged Water Resources Economics to review District policies and procedures related to new
connections, with ongoing work to recommend updates in FY 2025.

4. Met all reporting deadlines for grant administration, ensuring timely and accurate processing
of payments.

5. Achieve a 45% registration rate on WaterSmart customer engagement portal, facilitating bet-
ter customer interaction and water use monitoring

6. Implemented online forms for rebate requests through WaterSmart, streamlining the applica-
tion process for customers.

Community Engagement: 

1. Participated in the Scotts Valley Art Wine and Beer Festival and Independence Day parade, en-
gaging with the community and promoting water use efficiency.

2. Produced “The Path of Water” video and conducted three in-person system tours to educate
the public about the District’s operations.

3. Recruited and onboarded Junior Associate Board Members to involve youth in District leader-
ship.

6.1 - 11



7 

4. Explored collaborative activities and shared resources to provide additional value for custom-
ers through an enhanced strategic partnership with Soquel Creek Water District.

5. Maintained and enhanced the District’s website as a platform for delivering informative and
accessible messages to the community.

Organizational Vitality: 

1. Completed a study of Human Resources workflows and processes to ensure successful transi-
tion and improve efficiency.

2. Provided opportunities for each employee and Director to attend at least one training or pro-
fessional event annually, including conferences and specialized courses.

3. Organized staff events, such as holiday lunches and retirement celebrations, to foster a posi-
tive work environment.

4. Installed a new storage shed to house equipment, improving operational efficiency and re-
source management.

5. Implemented safety training and equipment inspections, including flagging training and shor-
ing equipment maintenance, to ensure a safe work environment.

Internal Control Structure 
District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of an internal control struc-
ture that ensures that District assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control 
structure also warrants that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of 
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The District’s in-
ternal control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are 
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed 
the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and 
judgments by management. 

Budgetary Control 
The Board of Directors approves an operating and capital budget annually, prior to each new fiscal 
year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and control of financial operations 
and accountability for the District’s activities. The budget and reporting treatment applied to the 
District are consistent with the accrual basis of accounting. Each division manager is responsible for 
his/her division budget. The General Manager is responsible for the overall District budget. 

Investment Policy 
The Board of Directors has adopted an investment policy that conforms to state law and prudent 
money management. The objectives of the Investment Policy are safety, liquidity, and yield. District 
funds are invested in the certificates of deposit held in a safekeeping account with US Bank.  Cash is 
also invested in the State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), CLASS local government 
investment pool, and checking accounts. 

Reserve Policy 
The Board of Directors has established a policy setting guidelines on cash reserves that support the 

District’s long-term financial health and operational stability. The Board authorized the target cash re-

serve level to be the aggregate total of the targets for the following individual reserve categories: 
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1) Operating Reserve:  to provide working capital to support the operation, maintenance, and

administration of the District ensuring that the cash flow needs of normal operations are met.

2) Rate Stabilization Reserve: to bridge the temporary revenue shortfall resulting from reduced

consumption associated with declining water sales or unexpected increases in short-term op-

eration and maintenance expenses.

3) Emergency Reserve: to allow the District to provide uninterrupted service in the event of a fis-

cal emergency, natural disaster, or major facility failure.

4) Capital Reserve: to provide funds for repair, replacement, or improvement of District’s infra-

structure assets.

5) Debt Service Reserve: to ensure adequate funds for full and timely payment of debt obli-

gations.

Following the established criteria, the District’s reserve target for this fiscal year was calculated to be 
$5.6 million.  As of June 30, 2024, the District’s cash balance was $9.3 million, or 165.6% of the target.  
The year-end cash balance was designated as follows: 

Operating  $   2,814,400 
Rate Stabilization  1,704,800 
Emergency  1,020,100 
Capital  1,919,300 
Debt Service  1,847,900 

Total  $            9,306,500 

Independent Audit and Financial Reporting 
The State Law and Bond covenants require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial state-
ments by an independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of Nigro & Nigro, PC has 
conducted the audit of the District’s financial statements for FY 2024. The Independent Auditor’s 
Report appears in the Financial Section. 

Risk Management 
The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Au-
thority (Authority). The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer insurance programs for 
the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage, as necessary. 

Other References 
More information is contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and in the Notes to 
the Basic Financial Statements found in the Financial Section of the report. 

Awards and Acknowledgment 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Cer-
tificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certificate) to the District for its Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. This was the 4th year that the 
District has received this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate, a governmental entity must 
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This report 
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements. As such, we 
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are submitting the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to the GFOA to determine the District’s eli-
gibility for another Certificate. 

Preparation of this report was accomplished by the combined efforts of the District staff. I appreciate 
the dedication and professionalism that our staff members bring to the District. I would also like to 
thank the Board of Directors for their continued support in the planning and implementation of Scotts 
Valley Water District’s fiscal policies. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

              
 
David McNair 
General Manager 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Organizational Chart 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
GFOA Award 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Board of Directors 
Scotts Valley Water District 
Scotts Valley, California 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Scotts Valley Water District (District), which 
comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and related statements of revenue, expenses, and 
changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and related notes to the financial statements, 
as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the District as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the respective changes in its financial position and 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Plan’s Net Pension Liability, 
Schedule of the District’s Contributions to the Pension Plan, Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total OPEB 
Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule of the District’s Contributions to the OPEB Plan be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The Combining Schedules of Balance Sheets and Combining 
Schedules of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements   are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 
the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, 
we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report dated December 
18, 2024, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Walnut Creek, California 
December 18, 2024 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) offers readers of Scotts Valley Water District’s financial 
statements a narrative overview of the District’s financial activities for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 
2023. This MD&A presents financial highlights, an overview of the accompanying financial statements, an 
analysis of net position and results of operations, a current-to prior year analysis, a discussion on restrictions, 
commitments and limitations, and a discussion of significant activity involving capital assets and long-term 
debt. Please read in conjunction with the financial statements, which follow this section. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
• In 2024, the District’s net position increased 11.7% or $3,029,021 from $25,942,840 to $28,971,861, 

primarily due to a $1,284,887 decrease in capital contributions from Capacity buy-in fees and a state 
grant. 

• In 2023, the District’s net position increased 12.8% or $2,942,754 from $23,000,086 to $25,942,840, 
primarily due to a $1,448,731 increase in capital contributions from Capacity buy-in fees and a state 
grant. 

• In 2024, the District’s total operating and non-operating revenues increased 4.37% or $404,236 from 
$9,248,077 to $9,652,313, primarily from increases in investment earnings due to the higher rate of 
return for the fiscal period, as well as increases in property tax revenue. 

• In 2023, the District’s total operating and non-operating revenues increased 5.83% or $509,539 from 
$8,738,538 to $9,248,077, primarily from increases in water service charges due to the rate increase for 
the fiscal period, as well as increases in property tax revenue and investment earnings. 

• In 2024, the District’s total expenses decreased 11.5% or $966,918 from $8,385,765 to $7,418,847, 
primarily due to large decreases in non-cash employee benefit expenses as a result of the District’s 
annual revaluation of net pension and OPEB liabilities. 

• In 2023, the District’s total expenses increased 22.4% or $1,533,186 from $6,852,579 to $8,385,765, 
primarily from general price increases impacting overall operating expenses. 

 
REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows provide information about the activities 
and performance of the District.  
 
The Balance Sheet includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to 
creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure 
of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial stability of the District. All of the current year’s 
revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
 This statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and can be used to 
determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its rates and other charges. This 
statement can also be used to evaluate net position and credit worthiness. The other required financial 
statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information about the District’s cash receipts and 
cash payments for the fiscal period. The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments and 
net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related 
financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where the funds came from, what were the 
funds used for, and what were the changes in funds balance during the reporting period. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 
 
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or worse 
off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that helps answer this question.  
 
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. All of the current 
year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the District’s net position and changes to it. The District’s net position is the 
difference between assets/deferred outflows of resources and liabilities/deferred inflows of resources. 
Increases or decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating. However, non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, 
population growth, zoning and the regulatory landscape need to be taken into consideration when measuring 
the District’s financial health. 
 
Condensed Balance Sheets 
 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 Change June 30, 2022 Change

Assets:

Current assets 10,080,220$      10,902,719$      (822,499)$           5,225,582$      5,677,137$      

Non-current assets 1,261,872           2,549,358           (1,287,486)         6,212,721         (3,663,363)       

Capital assets, net 27,093,603         25,175,177         1,918,426           24,641,893      533,284            

Total assets 38,435,695         38,627,254         (191,559)             36,080,196      2,547,058         

Deferred outflows of resources 1,482,700           2,135,688           (652,988)             2,563,537         (427,849)          

Total assets and deferred
  outflows of resources 39,918,395$      40,762,942$      (844,547)$           38,643,733$    2,119,209$      

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 1,921,450$         2,184,550$         (263,100)$           2,136,957$      47,593$            

Non-current liabilities 9,811,962           10,923,203         (1,111,241)         12,243,360      (1,320,157)       

Total liabilities 11,733,412         13,107,753         (1,374,341)         14,380,317      (1,272,564)       

Deferred inflows of resources 1,187,814           1,712,349           (524,535)             1,263,330         449,019            

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 19,384,032         17,861,013         1,523,019           21,084,476      (3,223,463)       

Unrestricted 9,587,829           8,081,827           1,506,002           1,915,610         6,166,217         

Total net position 28,971,861         25,942,840         3,029,021           23,000,086      2,942,754         

Total liabilities, deferred outflows
  of resources and net position 41,893,087$      40,762,942$      1,130,145$         38,643,733$    2,119,209$      

 
  
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an agency’s financial position. In the 
case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources by $28,971,861 and $25,942,840 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectfully. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT (continued) 
 
Condensed Balance Sheets (continued) 
By far the largest portion of the District’s net position (67% and 69% as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively) reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to 
provide services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these assets are not available 
for future spending. 
 
At the end of fiscal year 2024 and 2023, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net position 
of $9,587,829 and $8,081,827, respectively.  
 
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 Change June 30, 2022 Change

Total operating revenues 7,689,553$         7,605,864$         83,689$               7,454,898$      150,966$          

Total operating expenses (5,804,101)         (6,759,109)         955,008               (5,251,268)       (1,507,841)       

Operating income before depreciation 1,885,452           846,755               1,038,697           2,203,630         (1,356,875)       

Depreciation expense (1,237,189)         (1,208,395)         (28,794)                (1,159,097)       (49,298)             

Operating income (loss) 648,263               (361,640)             1,009,903           1,044,533         (1,406,173)       

Total non-operating revenues(expenses), net 1,585,203           1,223,952           361,251               744,397            479,555            

Capital contributions 795,555               2,080,442           (1,284,887)         631,711            1,448,731         

Change in net position 3,029,021           2,942,754           86,267                 2,420,641         522,113            

Net position:

Beginning of year 25,942,840         23,000,086         2,942,754           20,579,445      2,420,641         

End of year 28,971,861$      25,942,840$      3,029,021$         23,000,086$    2,942,754$      

 
 
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position shows how the District’s net position 
changed during the fiscal years.   
 
A closer examination of the sources of changes in net position reveals that: 
 
In 2024, the District’s net position increased 11.7% or $3,029,021 from $25,942,840 to $28,971,861, 
primarily due to a $1,284,887 decrease in capital contributions from Capacity buy-in fees and a state grant. 
 
In 2023, the District’s net position increased 12.8% or $2,942,754 from $23,000,086 to $25,942,840, 
primarily due to a $1,448,731 increase in capital contributions from Capacity buy-in fees and a state grant. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT (continued) 
 
The following tables present the detailed breakdown of the information presented in the condensed 
summary. 
 
Total Revenues 

Increase Increase

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 (Decrease) June 30, 2022 (Decrease)

Operating revenues:

Water sales 4,868,776$         4,896,862$         (28,086)$             4,913,827$      (16,965)$           

Water service 2,780,388           2,666,947           113,441               2,509,412         157,535            

Other fees and charges 40,389                 42,055                 (1,666)                  31,659               10,396               

Total operating revenues 7,689,553           7,605,864           83,689                 7,454,898         150,966            

Non-operating:

Property taxes 1,557,187           1,398,325           158,862               1,241,664         156,661            

Investment earnings 388,890               90,570                 298,320               (29,611)             120,181            

Other non-operating revenues 16,683                 153,318               (136,635)             71,587               81,731               

Total non-operating 1,962,760           1,642,213           320,547               1,283,640         358,573            

Total revenues 9,652,313$         9,248,077$         404,236$            8,738,538$      509,539$          
 

In 2024, the District’s total operating and non-operating revenues increased 4.37% or $404,236 from 
$9,248,077 to $9,652,313, primarily from increases in investment earnings due to the higher rate of return in 
the fixed asset market for the fiscal period, as well as increases in property tax revenue driven by the current 
local real estate market where home prices remain high. 

In 2023, the District’s total operating and non-operating revenues increased 5.83% or $509,539 from 
$8,738,538 to $9,248,077, primarily from increases in water service charges due to the rate increase for the 
fiscal period, as well as increases in property tax revenue and investment earnings, from higher assessed 
property values and increased market interest rates, respectively. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT (continued) 
 
Total Expenses 
 

Increase Increase

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 (Decrease) June 30, 2022 (Decrease)

Operating expenses:

Source of supply 143,902$            104,053$            39,849$               104,454$          (401)$                 

Pumping 516,628               488,373               28,255                 469,102            19,271               

Water treatment 514,224               310,960               203,264               439,819            (128,859)          

Recycled water 573,445               847,463               (274,018)             536,090            311,373            

Transmission and distribution 2,191,237           2,253,229           (61,992)                1,877,505         375,724            

Finance, customer service and conservation 1,012,598           1,433,076           (420,478)             816,887            616,189            

General and administrative 852,067               1,321,955           (469,888)             1,007,411         314,544            

Total operating expenses 5,804,101           6,759,109           (955,008)             5,251,268         1,507,841         

Depreciation expense 1,237,189           1,208,395           28,794                 1,159,097         49,298               

Non-operating expenses:

Change in investment in SMGA-JPA 202,282               224,364               (22,082)                328,729            (104,365)          

Interest expense 175,275               193,897               (18,622)                113,485            80,412               

Total non-operating 377,557               418,261               (40,704)                442,214            (23,953)             

Total expenses 7,418,847$         8,385,765$         (966,918)$           6,852,579$      1,533,186$      
 

In 2024, the District’s total expenses decreased 11.5% or $966,918 from $8,385,765 to $7,418,847, primarily 
due to large decreases in non-cash employee benefit expenses as a result of the District’s annual revaluation 
of net pension and OPEB liabilities. 
 

In 2023, the District’s total expenses increased 22.4% or $1,533,186 from $6,852,579 to $8,385,765, 
primarily from general price increases impacting overall operating expenses. 

 

Capital Assets 
The following provides a summary comparison of the District’s capital assets at year end. 
 

Balance Balance Balance

Capital assets: June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Non-depreciable assets 4,197,415$         1,555,380$         1,106,059$         

Depreciable assets 51,176,756         50,663,176         49,370,818         

Accumulated depreciation (28,280,568)       (27,043,379)       (25,834,984)       

   Total capital assets, net 27,093,603$      25,175,177$      24,641,893$      
 

 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $27,093,603 and 
$25,175,177, (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively.  The District’s investment in capital assets 
includes land, transmission and distribution systems, tanks, pumps, buildings, equipment, vehicles and 
construction-in-process.  See Note 7 for further capital asset information. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT (continued) 
 
Debt Administration 
The following provides a summary comparison of the District’s long-term debt at year end. 
 

Balance Balance Balance

Long-term debt: June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Loan payable 7,709,571$         8,640,891$         9,552,882$         
 

 
For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, long-term debt decreased by $931,320 and $931,320, 
respectively, due to the regular principal payments on the District’s loans payable. See Note 9 for further 
information. 
 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
basic financial statements.  
 
FACTORS AFFECTING CURRENT FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
Management is unaware of any item that would affect the current financial position. 
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT 

 
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s customers, stakeholders and other interested parties 
with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.  Contact the District’s General 
Manager, David McNair dmcnair@svwd.org or (831-600-1902) with any questions. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Balance Sheets 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

 
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 8,344,078$      8,580,425$      

Accrued interest receivable 76,445               49,730               

Accounts receivable, net (Note 4) 1,232,427         1,078,476         

Property taxes receivable 74,566               77,352               

Grant receivable 23,736               784,669            

Other receivables 7,667                 16,097               

Notes receivable (Note 5) 10,000               18,334               

Inventory – materials and supplies 234,904            227,243            

Prepaid expenses 76,397               70,393               

Total current assets 10,080,220      10,902,719      

Non-current assets:

Restricted – cash and cash equivalents (Note 2 and 3) 1,037,449         2,355,013         

Investments (Note 2) 1,974,692         -                           

Notes receivable (Note 5) 35,000               45,000               

Investment in Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency – JPA (Note 6) 189,423            149,345            

Capital assets – not being depreciated (Note 7) 4,197,415.00   1,555,380         

Capital assets – being depreciated, net (Note 7) 22,896,188      23,619,797      

Total non-current assets 30,330,167      27,724,535      

Total assets 40,410,387      38,627,254      

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred amounts related to total OPEB liability (Note 11) 116,373            115,583            

Deferred amounts related to net pension liability (Note 10) 1,366,327         2,020,105         

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,482,700         2,135,688         

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 41,893,087$    40,762,942$    

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 613,068$          868,140$          

Customer deposits for services 120,467            127,356            

Accrued interest payable 87,638               96,966               

Long-term liabilities – due within one year:

Compensated absences (Note 8) 44,395               44,395               

Loans payable (Note 9) 949,811            931,320            

Total OPEB liability (Note 11) 106,071            116,373            

Total current liabilities 1,921,450         2,184,550         

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (Note 8) 115,416            133,185            

Loans payable (Note 9) 6,759,760         7,709,571         

Total OPEB liability (Note 11) 1,494,132         1,680,769         

Net pension liability (Note 10) 1,442,654         1,399,678         

Total non-current liabilities 9,811,962         10,923,203      

Total liabilities 11,733,412      13,107,753      

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred amounts related to net pension liability (Note 10) 1,187,814         1,712,349         

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,187,814         1,712,349         

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets (Note 12) 19,384,032      17,861,013      

Unrestricted 9,587,829         8,081,827         

Total net position 28,971,861      25,942,840      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 41,893,087$    40,762,942$     
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Operating revenues:
Water sales 4,868,776$      4,896,862$      
Water service 2,780,388        2,666,947        
Other fees and charges 40,389              42,055              

Total operating revenues 7,689,553        7,605,864        

Operating expenses:
Source of supply 143,902            104,053            
Pumping 516,628            488,373            
Water treatment 514,224            310,960            
Recycled water 573,445            847,463            
Transmission and distribution 2,191,237        2,253,229        
Finance, customer service and conservation 1,012,598        1,433,076        
General and administrative 852,067            1,321,955        

Total operating expenses 5,804,101        6,759,109        

Operating income before depreciation 1,885,452        846,755            
Depreciation expense (1,237,189)      (1,208,395)      

Operating income (loss) 648,263            (361,640)          

Non-operating revenues(expenses):
Property taxes 1,557,187        1,398,325        
Change in investment in Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency-JPA (Note 6) (202,282)          (224,364)          
Investment earnings 388,890            90,570              
Interest expense (175,275)          (193,897)          
Other non-operating revenues 16,683              153,318            

Total non-operating income 1,585,203        1,223,952        

Change in net position before capital contributions 2,233,466        862,312            

Capital contributions:
Capacity buy-in fee 502,128            1,281,338        
State capital grant 293,427            799,104            

Total capital contributions 795,555            2,080,442        

Change in net position 3,029,021        2,942,754        

Net position:
Beginning of year 25,942,840      23,000,086      

End of year 28,971,861$   25,942,840$   
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

 
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers and others 7,553,826$         7,391,500$      

Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (2,163,959)         (2,169,894)       

Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (3,941,856)         (3,771,494)       

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,448,011           1,450,112         

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Proceeds from property taxes 1,559,973           1,420,733         

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 1,559,973           1,420,733         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,155,615)         (1,741,679)       

Proceeds from capacity buy-in fee 502,128              1,281,338         

Proceeds from state capital grant 1,054,360           14,435               

Proceeds from notes receivable 18,335                 20,000               

Principal paid on long-term debt (931,320)             (911,991)          

Interest paid on long-term debt (184,604)             (156,110)          

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (2,696,716)         (1,494,007)       

Cash flows from investing activities:

Contribution to the Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency – JPA (242,360)             (219,786)          

Purchase of investments, net (1,974,692)         -                           

Investment earnings 362,175              49,402               

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,854,877)         (170,384)          

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,543,609)         1,206,454         

Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year 10,935,438        9,728,984         

End of year 9,391,829$         10,935,438$    

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents 8,344,078$         8,580,425$      

Restricted – cash and cash equivalents 1,037,449           2,355,013         

Total cash and cash equivalents 9,381,527$         10,935,438$    
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Statements of Cash Flows (continued) 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

 
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash provided by operating 

activities:

Operating income(loss) 648,263$          (361,640)$        

Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net cash provided by 

operating activities:

Depreciation 1,237,189         1,208,395         

Other non-operating revenues 16,683               153,318            

Change in assets – (increase)decrease:

Accounts receivable, net (153,951)          (22,430)             

Other receivables 8,430                 2,191                 

Inventory – materials and supplies (7,661)               (13,839)             

Prepaid expenses (6,004)               5,610                 

Change in deferred outflows of resources – (increase)decrease

Deferred amounts related to total OPEB liability (790)                   6,267                 

Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 653,778            421,582            

Change in liabilities – increase(decrease):

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (255,072)          215,989            

Customer deposits for services (6,889)               (347,443)          

Compensated absences (17,769)             22,229               

Total OPEB liability (186,637)          (326,753)          

Net pension liability 42,976               37,617               

Change in deferred inflows of resources – increase(decrease)

Deferred amounts related to net pension liability (524,535)          449,019            

Total adjustments 799,748            1,811,752         

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,448,011$      1,450,112$      
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. Description of Organization 
Scotts Valley Water District (District) was created in 1961 by a vote of the people within the proposed 
District. It was formed under the County Water District Act with the purpose of providing water for 
domestic, commercial, municipal, and firefighting purposes. Beginning in 1962, the District acquired and 
consolidated several small mutual water supply systems. The District is located six miles north of the City 
of Santa Cruz, along State Highway 17, and covers approximately six square miles including most of the 
incorporated area of the City of Scotts Valley (City) and a portion of the unincorporated area north of the 
City. 
 
The financial statements of the District include the financial activities of the District as well as 
transactions made by the fiscal agent under authority granted by the District in various resolutions 
authorizing the issuance of revenue bonds, and the Scotts Valley Water District Public Facilities 
Corporation, a component unit. The District is incorporated as a water district in the State of California 
and is exempt from federal income and state franchise taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115 
and corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. 
 
The Scotts Valley Water District Public Facilities Corporation (Public Facilities Corporation), a California 
nonprofit corporation, was formed in April 1997, to finance the construction of a one million gallon per 
day reclaimed water treatment plant and related distribution system. The Public Facilities Corporation 
was dissolved on June 8, 2021. As of June 30, 2022, the assets and liabilities of the Public Facilities 
Corporation were distributed properly, resulting in a zero balance. 
 

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity (GASB 
Statement No. 61). The District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately 
elected governing board that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are 
legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially 
accountable. The District is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s 
governing body and: 1) It is able to impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary 
government.  

 

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, where the intent of the District is that the costs of 
providing goods and services (including depreciation expense) on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges.  
 

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which 
the District gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, 
include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and 
donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (continued) 

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated from the primary operating activities of the 
District. The District reports the change in net position from operations as operating income in the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  Operating activities are defined by the 
District as all activities other than financing and investing activities (interest expense and investment 
income), grants and subsidies, and other infrequently occurring transactions of a non-operating nature.  
Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operating activities of the 
District. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

 
C. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 

Position 
 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the balance sheet and statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of 90 days or less, when purchased, to be cash equivalents. Cash 
deposits are reported at the carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value. 
 

2. Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term investments, which are reported at cost, 
which approximates fair value. Cash deposits are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably 
estimates fair value. Investments in governmental investment pools are reported at fair value based 
on the fair value per share of the pool’s underlying portfolio. 
 
In accordance with fair value measurements, the District categorizes its assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation 
technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement 
fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement. 

 
Investments recorded on the balance sheet are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation 
techniques as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investments, 
such as stocks, corporate and government bonds. The District has the ability to access the holding 
and quoted prices as of the measurement date. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs, other than quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or liability either directly 
or indirectly, including inputs from markets that are not considered to be active. 
 
Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable. Unobservable inputs reflect the District’s own assumptions 
about the factors market participants would use in pricing an investment, and is based on the best 
information available in the circumstances. 

6.1 - 35



 

 27 
 

SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
C. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 

Position (continued) 
 

3. Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Accounts receivable consist of amounts owed by customers for goods provided and services 
rendered. Receivables are shown net of allowances for doubtful accounts.  Uncollectable accounts are 
based on prior experience and management’s assessment of the collectability of existing accounts. 
 

4. Inventory – Materials and Supplies 
These items consist of pipes, meters, and other items that are used for the repairs and maintenance 
of the District’s transmission and distribution system. These items are stated at cost using the first-in 
first-out method for inventory valuation. 

   
5. Prepaids 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items. 
 

6. Capital Assets 
Capital assets are stated at cost or at their acquisition value at date of contribution. It is the District’s 
policy to capitalize assets costing over $5,000. The provision for depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the capital assets.  
 

Description  Estimated Lives 
   

Water rights – recycled water   50 years 
Water treatment  7-40 years 
Recycled water system  10-40 years 
Source of supply – wells   15-40 years 
Transmission and distribution system  15-40 years 
Reservoirs and tanks  20-40 years 
Pumping  5-20 years 
Buildings and improvements  12-33 years 
Infrastructure  25-50 years 
Equipment and tools  7 years 
Office equipment  5-10 years 
Transportation   5-10 years 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
C. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 

Position (continued) 
 

7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
The statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This 
element represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources until then.  Also, the statement of net position reports a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This element represents an acquisition of net 
assets that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that 
time.   
 

8. Compensated Absences 
The District's employee benefits provide for accumulation of vacation and sick leave. Liabilities for 
vacation leave are recorded when benefits are earned. Full cash payment for all unused vacation 
leave is available to employees upon retirement or termination.  

 
9. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans and addition 
to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by CalPERS.   

 
The following timeframes are used for pension reporting: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2022 
Measurement Date June 30, 2023 
Measurement Period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 
 

10. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
For purposes of measuring the Total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position 
of the Scotts Valley Water District Retiree Benefits Plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments 
and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase 
of one year or less, which are reported at cost. 
 
The following timeframes are used for OPEB reporting: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2023 
Measurement Date June 30, 2023 
Measurement Period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
C. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 

Position (continued) 
 

11. Net Position 
Net position is classified into two components: net investment in capital assets and unrestricted.  
These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
• Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, 

including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, loans, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  If there are significant unspent 
related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds 
are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets.  Rather, that portion of the 
debt is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds. 

• Restricted – This component of net position is restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments. 

• Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the 
definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricted". 

 
D. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

 
E. Property Taxes 

The Santa Cruz County Assessor’s Office assesses all real and personal property within the County each 
year. The Santa Cruz County Tax Collector’s Office bills and collects the District’s share of property taxes. 
The Santa Cruz County Auditor-Controller’s Office remits current property tax collections to the District 
throughout the year. Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article XIIIA of the State 
Constitution at one percent (1%) of countywide assessed valuations. Property taxes receivable at year-
end are related to property taxes collected by the Santa Cruz County Tax Collector’s Office, which have 
not been credited to the District's cash balance as of June 30.  
 
The property tax calendar is as follows: 

 
Lien date March 1 
Levy date July 1 
Due dates November 1 and March 1 
Collection dates December 10 and April 10 
 

F. Capital Contributions 
Capital contributions represent cash and/or capital asset additions contributed to the District by outside 
parties. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments were classified on the balance sheet as follows: 
 

Description June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents 8,344,078$         8,580,425$         

Restricted – cash and cash equivalents 1,037,449           2,355,013           

Investments 1,974,692           -                             

   Total cash and cash equivalents 11,356,219$      10,935,438$      
 

 
Cash and investments as of June 30th consisted of the following: 
 

Description June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Petty cash 309$                     400$                     

Demand deposits held with financial institutions 3,050,145           4,906,824           

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 6,331,073           6,028,214           

Investments 1,974,692           -                             

   Total cash and cash equivalents 11,356,219$      10,935,438$      
 

 
Demand Deposits with Financial Institutions 
At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the carrying amount of the District’s demand deposits were $3,050,145 and 
$4,906,824, respectively, and the financial institution’s balances were $4,612,753 and $3,922,143, 
respectively. The net difference represents outstanding checks, deposits-in-transit and/or other reconciling 
items between the financial institution’s balance and the District’s balance for each year. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned 
to it. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. Cash balances held in banks are 
insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized by the 
respective financial institutions. In addition, the California Government Code requires that a financial 
institution secures deposits made by public agencies by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool 
held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of 
the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by 
the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first 
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit 
issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
The California State Treasurer, through the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA), invests its funds to 
manage the State’s cash flow and strengthen the financial security of local public agencies. PMIA’s policy sets 
as primary investment objectives safety, liquidity and yield. Through the PMIA, the Investment Division 
manages the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF allows cities, counties, and special districts to place 
money in a major portfolio and, at no additional costs, use the expertise of Investment Division staff. 
Participating agencies can withdraw their funds from LAIF at any time as LAIF is highly liquid and has a 
dollar-in dollar-out amortized cost methodology. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) (continued) 
The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF. The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is 
reported at an amount based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the 
entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of the portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal 
is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF. LAIF is not categorized under the fair value hierarchy 
established by GAAP as it is held at an amortized cost basis and it is Not Rated under the current credit risk 
ratings format. For financial reporting purposes, the District considers funds in LAIF a cash equivalent due to 
its highly liquid nature and dollar-in dollar-out amortized cost methodology. As of June 30, 2024, and 2023, 
the District held $6,331,073 and $6,028,214 in LAIF, respectively. 
 
Investments 
The District’s investments as of June 30, 2024 are presented in the following Investment Table: 
 

Measurement Credit Total 12 Months or 13 to 24 25 to 120

Type of Investments Input Rating Fair Value Less Months Months

U.S. treasury obligations Level 1 AAa 496,384$            496,384$            -$                           -$                           

Negotiable certificates of deposit Level 2  A to AAA 1,478,308           -                             491,490               986,818               

Total investments 1,974,692$         496,384$            491,490$            986,818$            

Maturity

 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California 
Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies 
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more 
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. The table does not 
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt 
agreements of the District that are governed by the agreement between the District and the Trustee, rather 
than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy. 
 

Maximum Maximum

Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5-years 100% None

U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Securities 5-years 100% None

State of California Obligations 5-years 100% None

CA Local Agency Obligations 5-years 100% None

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (Negotiable CD) 5-years 30% None

Banker's Acceptances 180 days 100% None

Repurchase Agreements 1-year 100% None

Commercial Paper 270 days 100% None

Medium- Term Notes 5-years 100% None

California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 100% None

Mutual Funds and Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 100% None  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is 
by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from 
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity as necessary to provide 
the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate 
fluctuations is provided in the Investment Table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by 
maturity as of June 30, 2024. 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. Presented in the Investment Table are Standard & Poor’s credit ratings for the District’s 
investments as of June 30, 2024. 
 
NOTE 3 – RESTRICTED – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

 
Restricted – cash and cash equivalents as of June 30th consisted of the following: 

 
Description June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Restricted – cash and cash equivalents 1,037,449$         2,355,013$         

Less:

Accrued interest payable (87,638)                (96,966)                

Loan payable – current portion (949,811)             (931,320)             

Unspent proceeds from loan issuance -                             (1,326,727)         

   Total restricted – net position -$                           -$                           
 

 
The restricted – cash and cash equivalents balance on the balance sheet at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were cash 
holdings by the District’s financial institution for the July 1, 2024 and 2023 loan payments, respectively. The 
June 30, 2023 balance also included cash from the remaining unused proceeds from the loan payable – 2021. 
This amount was then used in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. (See Note 12) 
 
 
NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 
 
Accounts receivable, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts consisted of the following: 
 

Description June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Accounts receivable 1,245,427$      1,091,476$      

Allowance for doubtful accounts (13,000)             (13,000)             

   Total accounts receivable, net 1,232,427$      1,078,476$      
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NOTE 5 – NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
Changes in notes receivable amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Current Long-term

Notes Receivable July 1, 2023  Additions Payments June 30, 2024 Portion Portion

City of Scotts Valley – Installment Note 55,000$            -$                         (10,000)$           45,000$            10,000$            35,000$            

Vineyards HOA – Installment Note 8,333                 -                           (8,333)                -                           -                           -                           

Total notes receivable 63,333$            -$                         (18,333)$           45,000$            10,000$            35,000$            

 
Changes in notes receivable amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, were as follows: 

 
Balance Balance Current Long-term

Notes Receivable July 1, 2022  Additions Payments June 30, 2023 Portion Portion

City of Scotts Valley – Installment Note 65,000$            -$                         (10,000)$           55,000$            10,000$            45,000$            

Vineyards HOA – Installment Note 18,333               -                           (10,000)             8,333                 8,333                 -                           

Total notes receivable 83,333$            -$                         (20,000)$           63,333$            18,333$            45,000$            

 
City of Scotts Valley – Installment Note 
The City of Scotts Valley (City) entered into an agreement with the District on June 4, 1997, for the 
construction of the water main extension into the Gateway South Assessment District (Project). Total cost of 
the extension amounted to $277,000. The owner of the Project contributed $112,000 and the City 
contributed, as a result of the District’s bond issuance, $165,000. 
 
Terms of the installment note call for principal payable semi-annually on January 1st and July 1st of each year 
maturing in 2027, with variable annual interest rates ranging from 5.3% to 7%. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
the balance of the note with the City regarding the Installment Note amounted to $45,000 and $55,000, 
respectively. Future principal and interest payments on the note are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2025 10,000               2,400                 12,400               

2026 10,000               1,800                 11,800               

2027 10,000               1,200                 11,200               

2028 15,000               450                     15,450               

Total 45,000               5,850$               50,850$            

Current (10,000)             

Long-term 35,000$            
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NOTE 5 – NOTES RECEIVABLE (continued) 
 
Vineyards HOA – Installment Note 
On May 15, 2022, the District entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Vineyards Homeowners 
Association (Association) where the District agreed to loan the Association $50,000 for installation of 
backflow protection devices on the Association’s premises. The Association will make 60 monthly payments 
of $833.33 plus interest at the LAIF rate of return. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the balance of the note with the 
Association amounted to $0 and $8,333, respectively.  
 

 
NOTE 6 – INVESTMENT IN SANTA MARGARITA GROUNDWATER AGENCY – JPA 
 
On June 1, 2017, the Scotts Valley Water District, San Lorenzo Valley Water District, and the County of Santa 
Cruz (Members) entered into a joint powers agreement creating the Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency 
(Agency). The purpose of the Agency is to prepare a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (Plan) by January 31, 
2023 and continue implementing the Plan over the next 20-year period. 
 
The term of the agreement with the Members shall remain in effect until terminated by unanimous written 
consent of all Members, except during the outstanding term of any Agency indebtedness. Upon termination of 
the agreement, the assets shall be distributed in proportion to the contributions of each Member agency. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District contributed $242,360 and $219,786, 
respectfully, to the Agency and held a $189,423 and $149,345, respectfully, net position investment in the 
Agency after operations concluded for those years.  
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NOTE 6 – INVESTMENT IN SANTA MARGARITA GROUNDWATER AGENCY – JPA (continued) 
 
The following table presents the summary breakdown of the information presented in the condensed 
financial statements as well as the District’s calculated share: 
 
 

A. Entity Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency

B. Purpose

C. Participants 3 member agencies, 2 non−member agencies

D. Governing board Eleven representatives appointed by members

E. District payments for FY 2024:

Contribution $242,360

F. Condensed financial information June 30, 2024

Audit dated October 24, 2024

Statement of net position: June 30, 2024 District Share

Total assets 464,131$               242,711$               

Total liabilities 101,902                 53,288                    

Net position 362,229$               189,423$               

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:

Total revenues 694,491$               363,175$               

Total expenses (646,986)                (323,097)                

Change in net position 47,505                    40,078                    

Beginning – net position 314,724                 149,345                 

Ending – net position 362,229$               189,423$               

G. District's share of year-end financial position, as calculated 100.00% 52.29%

To pool member resources and realize the advantages of 

local groundwater sustainability through an agency
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NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
 
Changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows: 

 
Balance Deletions/ Balance

July 1, 2023 Additions Transfers June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable assets:

Land 1,218,697$      -$                         -$                         1,218,697$      

Construction-in-process 336,683            4,204,318         (1,562,283)       2,978,718         

   Total non-depreciable assets 1,555,380         4,204,318         (1,562,283)       4,197,415         

Depreciable assets:

Water rights – recycled water 5,267,834         -                           -                           5,267,834         

Water treatment 9,446,610         128,942            -                           9,575,552         

Recycled water system 2,654,867         -                           -                           2,654,867         

Source of supply – wells 6,677,359         -                           -                           6,677,359         

Transmission and distribution system 9,957,772         215,488            -                           10,173,260      

Reservoirs and tanks 7,286,514         -                           -                           7,286,514         

Pumping 2,340,638         15,540               -                           2,356,178         

Buildings and improvements 1,913,490         36,180               -                           1,949,670         

Infrastructure 2,757,262         -                           -                           2,757,262         

Equipment and tools 1,256,410         117,430            -                           1,373,840         

Office equipment 257,207            -                           -                           257,207            

Transportation 847,213            -                           -                           847,213            

   Total depreciable assets 50,663,176      513,580            -                           51,176,756      

Accumulated depreciation:

Water rights – recycled water (2,210,635)       (102,004)          -                           (2,312,639)       

Water treatment (4,850,535)       (156,950)          -                           (5,007,485)       

Recycled water system (1,074,315)       (66,718)             -                           (1,141,033)       

Source of supply – wells (3,906,329)       (145,380)          -                           (4,051,709)       

Transmission and distribution system (6,517,066)       (200,274)          -                           (6,717,340)       

Reservoirs and tanks (3,879,765)       (167,126)          -                           (4,046,891)       

Pumping (1,346,551)       (101,266)          -                           (1,447,817)       

Buildings and improvements (807,974)          (57,811)             -                           (865,785)          

Infrastructure (650,221)          (121,156)          -                           (771,377)          

Equipment and tools (960,390)          (63,586)             -                           (1,023,976)       

Office equipment (243,253)          (4,681)                -                           (247,934)          

Transportation (596,345)          (50,237)             -                           (646,582)          

   Total accumulated depreciation (27,043,379)    (1,237,189)       -                           (28,280,568)    

   Total depreciable assets, net 23,619,797      (723,609)          -                           22,896,188      

   Total capital assets, net 25,175,177$    3,480,709$      (1,562,283)$     27,093,603$    

Description

 
 
In fiscal year 2024, major capital assets additions amounted to $3,155,615, and depreciation expense 
amounted to $1,237,189. 
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NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (continued) 
 
Changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, were as follows: 
 

Balance Deletions/ Balance

July 1, 2022 Additions Transfers June 30, 2023

Non-depreciable assets:

Land 650,697$          568,000$          -$                         1,218,697$      

Construction-in-process 455,362            1,173,680         (1,292,359)       336,683            

   Total non-depreciable assets 1,106,059         1,741,680         (1,292,359)       1,555,380         

Depreciable assets:

Water rights – recycled water 5,267,834         -                           -                           5,267,834         

Water treatment 9,446,610         -                           -                           9,446,610         

Recycled water system 2,654,867         -                           -                           2,654,867         

Source of supply – wells 6,677,359         -                           -                           6,677,359         

Transmission and distribution system 9,360,220         597,552            -                           9,957,772         

Reservoirs and tanks 7,286,514         -                           -                           7,286,514         

Pumping 2,024,808         315,830            -                           2,340,638         

Buildings and improvements 1,605,999         307,491            -                           1,913,490         

Infrastructure 2,757,262         -                           -                           2,757,262         

Equipment and tools 1,247,496         8,914                 -                           1,256,410         

Office equipment 257,207            -                           -                           257,207            

Transportation 784,642            62,571               -                           847,213            

   Total depreciable assets 49,370,818      1,292,358         -                           50,663,176      

Accumulated depreciation:

Water rights – recycled water (2,108,631)       (102,004)          -                           (2,210,635)       

Water treatment (4,697,346)       (153,189)          -                           (4,850,535)       

Recycled water system (1,007,597)       (66,718)             -                           (1,074,315)       

Source of supply – wells (3,756,160)       (150,169)          -                           (3,906,329)       

Transmission and distribution system (6,325,138)       (191,928)          -                           (6,517,066)       

Reservoirs and tanks (3,702,340)       (177,425)          -                           (3,879,765)       

Pumping (1,260,770)       (85,781)             -                           (1,346,551)       

Buildings and improvements (759,561)          (48,413)             -                           (807,974)          

Infrastructure (529,065)          (121,156)          -                           (650,221)          

Equipment and tools (901,362)          (59,028)             -                           (960,390)          

Office equipment (238,572)          (4,681)                -                           (243,253)          

Transportation (548,442)          (47,903)             -                           (596,345)          

   Total accumulated depreciation (25,834,984)    (1,208,395)       -                           (27,043,379)    

   Total depreciable assets, net 23,535,834      83,963               -                           23,619,797      

   Total capital assets, net 24,641,893$    1,825,643$      (1,292,359)$     25,175,177$    

Description

 
 

In fiscal year 2023 major capital assets additions amounted to $1,741,679, and depreciation expense 
amounted to $1,208,395. 
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NOTE 8 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
Changes in compensated absences amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Current Long-term

July 1, 2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 Portion Portion

155,351$          175,477$          (153,248)$        177,580$          44,395$            115,416$          
 

 
Changes in compensated absences amounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Current Long-term

July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022 Portion Portion

153,003$          173,222$          (170,874)$        155,351$          44,395$            133,185$          
 

 
NOTE 9 – LOAN PAYABLE 
 
Changes in loan payable for the year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows: 

 
Balance Balance Current Long-term

Loan Payable July 1, 2023  Additions Payments June 30, 2024 Portion Portion

2016 Loan Payable 2,765,891$      -$                         (685,320)$        2,080,571$      697,811$          1,382,760$      

2021 Loan Payable 5,875,000         -                           (246,000)          5,629,000         252,000            5,377,000         

Total notes payable 8,640,891$      -$                         (931,320)$        7,709,571$      949,811$          6,759,760$      
 

 
Changes in loan payable for the year ended June 30, 2023, were as follows: 

 
Balance Balance Current Long-term

Loan Payable July 1, 2022  Additions Payments June 30, 2023 Portion Portion

2016 Loan Payable 3,437,882$      -$                         (671,991)$        2,765,891$      685,320$          2,080,571$      

2021 Loan Payable 6,115,000         -                           (240,000)          5,875,000         246,000            5,629,000         

Total notes payable 9,552,882$      -$                         (911,991)$        8,640,891$      931,320$          7,709,571$      
 

 
2016 – Loan Payable 
In December 2016, the District entered into a loan payable agreement of $6,049,548 with JPMorgan Chase 
Bank to provide funds to prepay the 2004 and 2011 outstanding debt balances. Terms of the agreement 
provide for principal payable semi-annually on January 1st and July 1st at the rate of 1.85% per annum.  
Future principal and interest payments on the loan payable are as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2025 697,811            32,036               729,847            

2026 714,404            18,973               733,377            

2027 467,752            8,038                 475,790            

2028 200,604            1,855                 202,459            

Total 2,080,571         60,902$            2,141,473$      

Current (697,811)          

Long-term 1,382,760$      
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NOTE 9 – LOAN PAYABLE (continued) 
 
2021 – Loan Payable  
On July 1, 2021, the District entered into an installment sale agreement of $6,115,000 with First Foundation 
Public Finance to provide funds for financing certain public water facilities. The terms of the agreement 
provide for principal payable semi-annually on January 1st and July 1st at the rate of 2.43% per annum.  
 
Future principal and interest payments on the loan payable are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2025 252,000            133,723            385,723            

2026 259,000            127,514            386,514            

2027 265,000            121,148            386,148            

2028 271,000            114,635            385,635            

2029 278,000            107,965            385,965            

2030 - 2034 1,497,000         433,767            1,930,767         
2035 - 2039 1,691,000         240,315            1,931,315         
2040 - 2042 1,116,000         41,116               1,157,116         

Total 5,629,000         1,320,183$      6,949,183$      

Current (252,000)          

Long-term 5,377,000$      
 

 
 
NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 
Summary 
The following balances on the balance sheet will be addressed in this footnote as follows: 

 
Description June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Pension related deferred outflows 1,366,327$             2,020,105$                 

Net pension liability 1,442,654                1,399,678                   

Pension related deferred inflows 1,187,814                1,712,349                    
 

Qualified employees of the District are covered under a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
maintained by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), or "The Plan". 
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan 

 
The Plan 
The District contracts with CalPERS to provide retirement benefits for its employees in the following 
Plans: 

Classic Classic PEPRA
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3

Prior to Prior to On or after
Hire date July 1, 2011 January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5-years of service 5-years of service 5-years of service
Benefits payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50+ 50+ 52+
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.7% 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required member contribution rates 8.000% 7.000% 7.750%
Required employer contribution rates – FY 2023 14.340% 10.320% 7.470%
Required employer contribution rates – FY 2022 14.330% 10.340% 7.590%

Miscellaneous Plans

 
 
Plan Description, Benefits Provided, and Employees Covered 
The District participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS acts 
as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of 
California. A full description of the pension plan, benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not 
accounting purposes), and membership information are listed in the June 30, 2023 and 2022 Annual 
Actuarial Valuation Reports. The Annual Actuarial Valuation Reports and CalPERS’ audited financial 
statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and 
Publications. 
 
At June 30, 2023 (measurement date), the following members were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Classic Classic PEPRA

Plan Members Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total

Active members 2                                 9                                    8                                       19                          

Transferred and terminated members 8                                 1                                    7                                       16                          

Retired members and beneficiaries 18                              4                                    -                                        22                          

     Total plan members 28                              14                                  15                                    57                          

Miscellaneous Plans

 
 

At June 30, 2022 (measurement date), the following members were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Classic Classic PEPRA

Plan Members Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total

Active members 2                                 8                                    8                                       18                          

Transferred and terminated members 8                                 1                                    8                                       17                          

Retired members and beneficiaries 20                              4                                    -                                        24                          

     Total plan members 30                              13                                  16                                    59                          

Miscellaneous Plans
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 

A. General Information about the Pension Plan (continued) 

 
Plan Description, Benefits Provided, and Employees Covered (continued) 
CalPERS provides retirement, disability benefits, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. A 
Classic CalPERS Miscellaneous member becomes eligible for retirement upon attainment of age 50 with 
at least 5 years of credited service. Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) Miscellaneous 
members become eligible for retirement upon attainment of age 52 with at least 5 years of service. The 
retirement benefit is a monthly allowance equal to the product of the benefit factor, years of service, and 
final compensation.  The final compensation is the highest average pay rate during any consecutive three-
year period. 
 
Members are eligible for non-industrial disability retirement if they become disabled and have at least 5 
years of credited service. There is no special age requirement. The standard non-industrial disability 
retirement benefit is a monthly allowance equal to 1.8% of final compensation, multiplied by service.   
 
A member's beneficiary may receive the basic death benefit if the member dies while actively employed. 
The member must be actively employed with the District to be eligible for this benefit. A member's 
survivor who is eligible for any other pre-retirement death benefit may choose to receive that death 
benefit instead of this basic death benefit.  The basic death benefit is a lump sum in the amount of the 
members’ accumulated contributions, where interest is currently credited at 7.15% per year, plus a lump 
sum in the amount of one month's salary for each completed year of current service, up to a maximum of 
six months' salary. For purposes of this benefit, one month's salary is defined as the member's average 
monthly full-time rate of compensation during the 12 months preceding death.  
 
Upon the death of a retiree, a one-time lump sum payment of $500 will be made to the retiree's 
designated survivor(s), or to the retiree's estate. 
 
Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to each member’s retirement allowance.  
Beginning the second calendar year after the year of retirement, retirement and survivor allowances will 
be annually adjusted on a compound basis by 3%. 

 

Contribution Description 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are 
determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the 
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute 
the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Employer 
contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy 
contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution 
requirements are classified as plan member contributions. 
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plan (continued) 

 
Contribution Description (continued) 
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows: 
 

Classic Classic PEPRA

Contribution Type Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total

Contributions – employer 37,499$                    126,599$                    56,041$                         220,139$             

Miscellaneous Plans

 
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2023, were as follows: 

 

Classic Classic PEPRA

Contribution Type Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total

Contributions – employer 171,367$                 134,201$                    64,000$                         369,568$             

Miscellaneous Plans

 
Employer contributions rates may change if Plan contracts are amended. It is the responsibility of the 
employer to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the impact due to any employer paid 
member contributions or situations where members are paying a portion of the employer contribution. 
 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense 
The following tables show the District’s proportionate share of the risk pool collective net pension 
liability over the measurement period for the Miscellaneous Plan: 
 
Changes in the net pension liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, are as follows: 
 

Plan Total Plan Fiduciary Change in Plan Net

Plan Type and Balance Descriptions Pension Liability Net Position Pension Liability

CalPERS – Miscellaneous Plan:

   Balance as of June 30, 2022 (Measurement Date) 12,428,071$           11,028,393$              1,399,678$                   

   Balance as of June 30, 2023 (Measurement Date) 13,035,039$           11,592,385$              1,442,654$                   

     Change in Plan Net Pension Liability 606,968$                 563,992$                    42,976$                         
 

 
Changes in the net pension liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, are as follows: 
 

Plan Total Plan Fiduciary Change in Plan Net

Plan Type and Balance Descriptions Pension Liability Net Position Pension Liability

CalPERS – Miscellaneous Plan:

   Balance as of June 30, 2021 (Measurement Date) 11,319,925$           9,957,864$                 1,362,061$                   

   Balance as of June 30, 2022 (Measurement Date) 12,428,071$           11,028,393$              1,399,678$                   

     Change in Plan Net Pension Liability 1,108,146$             1,070,529$                 37,617$                         
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (continued) 
 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (continued) 
For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 pension expense was $392,358 and $1,277,785, respectively. 

 
The following is the approach established by the plan actuary to allocate the net pension liability and 
pension expense to the individual employers within the risk pool.   
 

(1) In determining a cost-sharing plan’s proportionate share, total amounts of liabilities and assets are 
first calculated for the risk pool as a whole on the valuation date (June 30, 2021 and 2019). The 
risk pool’s fiduciary net position (“FNP”) subtracted from its total pension liability (TPL) 
determines the net pension liability (NPL) at the valuation date.  
 

(2) Using standard actuarial roll forward methods, the risk pool TPL is then computed at the 
measurement date (June 30, 2023 and 2022). Risk pool FNP at the measurement date is then 
subtracted from this number to compute the NPL for the risk pool at the measurement date. For 
purposes of FNP in this step and any later reference thereto, the risk pool’s FNP at the 
measurement date denotes the aggregate risk pool’s FNP at June 30, 2023 and 2022 less the sum of 
all additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by all employers during the 
measurement period (2023 fiscal year and the 2022 fiscal year).  

 
(3) The individual plan’s TPL, FNP and NPL are also calculated at the valuation date.  

 
(4) Two ratios are created by dividing the plan’s individual TPL and FNP as of the valuation date from 

(3) by the amounts in step (1), the risk pool’s total TPL and FNP, respectively.  
 

(5) The plan’s TPL as of the Measurement Date is equal to the risk pool TPL generated in (2) multiplied 
by the TPL ratio generated in (4).   The plan’s FNP as of the Measurement Date is equal to the FNP 
generated in (2) multiplied by the FNP ratio generated in (4) plus any additional side fund (or 
unfunded liability) contributions made by the employer on behalf of the plan during the 
measurement period.  
 

(6) The plan’s NPL at the Measurement Date is the difference between the TPL and FNP calculated in 
(5).  

 
As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability of the Plan of $1,399,678 and $1,362,061, respectively. 
 
The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension 
liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The District’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined.   
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Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 
NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (continued) 
 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (continued) 
The District’s proportionate share percentage of the net pension liability for the June 30, 2023, 
measurement date was as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change

Ending Ending Increase/

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 (Decrease)

Measurement Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Percentage of Risk Pool Net Pension Liability 0.028851% 0.029913% -0.001062%

Percentage of Plan (PERF C) Net Pension Liability 0.011564% 0.012118% -0.000554%

Percentage Share of Risk Pool

 
 

The District’s proportionate share percentage of the net pension liability for the June 30, 2022, 
measurement date was as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change

Ending Ending Increase/

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 (Decrease)

Measurement Date June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

Percentage of Risk Pool Net Pension Liability 0.029913% 0.071733% -0.041820%

Percentage of Plan (PERF C) Net Pension Liability 0.012118% 0.025185% -0.013067%

Percentage Share of Risk Pool

 
 
The total amount of $220,139 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2025. At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Account Description of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions made after the measurement 

date 220,139$                 -$                                   

Difference between actual and proportionate share 

of employer contributions 742,955                   (90,706)                       

Adjustment due to differences in proportions 8,857                        (1,085,675)                 

Differences between expected and actual experience 73,698                      (11,433)                       

Differences between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 233,579                   -                                     

Changes in assumptions 87,099                      -                                     

Total Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources 1,366,327$             (1,187,814)$               
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

 
NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (continued) 
 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (continued) 
The total amount of $369,568 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date was recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2024. At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Account Description of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions made after the measurement 

date 369,568$                 -$                                   

Difference between actual and proportionate share 

of employer contributions 1,179,987                (30,629)                       

Adjustment due to differences in proportions 42,631                      (1,662,894)                 

Differences between expected and actual experience 28,108                      (18,826)                       

Differences between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 256,384                   -                                     

Total Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources 2,020,105$             (1,712,349)$               
 

 
Other remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions for the year ended June 30, 2024, will be amortized to pension expense in future 
periods as follows:  
 

Deferred
Amortization Period Outflows/(Inflows)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 of Resources

2024 (101,400)$                   
2025 (88,596)                       
2026 141,669                       
2027 6,701                            

Total (41,626)$                     
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (continued) 
 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (continued) 
Other remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions for the year ended June 30, 2023, will be amortized to pension expense in future 
periods as follows:  
 

Deferred
Amortization Period Outflows/(Inflows)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 of Resources

2023 (61,091)$                     
2024 (84,434)                       
2025 (73,100)                       
2026 156,813                       

Total (61,812)$                     
 

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2023 (the measurement date), the total pension liability 
was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2022, total pension liability.  The June 30, 2023, total 
pension liability and the June 30, 2022, total pension liability were based on the following actuarial 
methods and assumptions: 

 
Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate

Inflation

Salary Increases

Mortality Rate Table

Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.30% until Purchasing Power Protection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.30% thereafter

6.90%

2.30%

Varies by Entry Age and Service

Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds.

Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirement of GASB

Statement No. 68

 
 
Long‐term Expected Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

 
NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (continued) 
 
Long‐term Expected Rate of Return (continued) 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the next 20 years using a building-block approach. 
The expected rate of return was then adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses of 10 
Basis points. The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows: 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. 
 

Asset Class

Assumed Asset 

Allocation Real Return 1,2

Global Equity - Cap-weighted 30.0% 4.54%

Global Equity - Non-Cap-weighted 12.0% 3.84%

Private Equity 13.0% 7.28%

Treasury 5.0% 0.27%

Mortgage-backed Securities 5.0% 0.50%

Investment Grade Corporates 10.0% 1.56%

High Yield 5.0% 2.27%

Emerging Market Debt 5.0% 2.48%

Private Debt 5.0% 3.57%

Real Estate 15.0% 3.21%

Leverage -5.0% -0.59%

100.0%
 

1 An expected inflation of 2.3% is used for this period. 
2 Figures are based on the 2021 Asset Liability Management study. 

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily 
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Subsequent Events 
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this disclosure.  
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN AND NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 
 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the Plan as of the measurement date, 
calculated using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (5.90%) or 1 percentage-point higher 
(7.90%) than the current rate: 
 
Changes in the discount rate for the year ended June 30, 2024, was as follows: 
 

Discount Rate - 

1% Current Discount Discount Rate  + 1%

Plan Type 5.90% Rate 6.90% 7.90%

CalPERS – Miscellaneous Plan 3,205,587$             1,442,654$                (8,392)$                         

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

 
 

Changes in the discount rate for the year ended June 30, 2023, was as follows: 
 

Discount Rate - 

1% Current Discount Discount Rate  + 1%

Plan Type 5.90% Rate 6.90% 7.90%

CalPERS – Miscellaneous Plan 3,093,848$              1,399,678$                 5,796$                            

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

 
 

 
 
C. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions (continued) 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
CalPERS financial report and can be obtained from CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. 
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NOTE 11 – TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY 
 

Summary 
The following balances on the balance sheet will be addressed in this footnote as follows: 

 
Description June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

OPEB related deferred outflows 116,373$              115,583$              

Total OPEB liability – current 106,071                 116,373                 

Total OPEB liability – non-current 1,494,132             1,680,769             

Total OPEB liability 1,600,203             1,797,142              
 

A. General Information about the OPEB Plan 
 

Plan description 
The District’s defined benefit Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plan (Plan) provides benefits for all 
employees covered by the Plan as listed below. The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
administered by the District. The District’s Board has the authority to establish and amend the benefit 
terms and financing requirements of the Plan. Effective January 1, 2015, the District participates in a 
retiree benefits program through Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA/JPIA). The District 
does not have an OPEB trust established and no assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria 
in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 
 
Benefits provided 
The District offers medical benefits to retired employees who satisfy the eligibility rules. Spouses and 
surviving spouses are also eligible to receive benefits. Retirees may enroll in any plan available through 
the District’s Plan provider. The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are 
established in the Memorandum of Understanding with Scotts Valley Water District Employees Union 
AFSCME Local 101 AFL-CIO (Union). 
 
The District pays 100% of the premiums for employee only or employee plus one coverage up to the non-
Medicare rates for the High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) and similar Medicare rates for post-65 
coverage. Mixed two-party contracts where either the retiree or other covered party is on Medicare will 
also be subject to the non-Medicare maximum. The benefits include medical, dental, and vision. The 
District pays 100% of the cost for dental and vision coverage.  
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NOTE 11 – TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY (continued) 
 
A. General Information about the OPEB Plan (continued) 

 
Employees covered by benefit terms 
At June 30, 2023 and 2022 (Measurement Dates), the following employees were covered by the benefit 
terms:  
 

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Inactive plan members or spouses currently receiving benefits 17                            18                            
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -                               -                               
Active plan members 1                              1                              
Total 18                            19                            

 
 
Total OPEB Liability 
The District’s total OPEB liability of $1,600,203 and $1,797,142 were measured as of June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively, and were determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. These amounts were 
reported as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
 
Payable to the OPEB Plan 
At June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, the District had no outstanding amount of contributions 
required to the OPEB plan. 

 
B. Total OPEB Liability  

 
Actuarial assumptions 
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2023 and 2022 actuarial valuations were determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: 
 

Valuation/Measurement Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Experience Study N/A N/A

Discount rate 3.65% 3.54%

Inflation 2.50% 2.50%

Salary increases 2.75% 2.75%

Healthcare cost trend rates 4.0 percent 4.0 percent  
 

The mortality assumptions are based on the 2017 CalPERS Active and Retiree Mortality for Miscellaneous 
Employees table created by CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies mortality for participating agencies 
and establishes mortality tables that are modified versions of commonly used tables. This table 
incorporates mortality projection as deemed appropriate based on CalPERS analysis.  
   
The retirement assumptions are based on the 2014 CalPERS 2.7%@55 Rates for Miscellaneous 
Employees table and the 2009 CalPERS 2.0%@55 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees. 
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NOTE 11 – TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY (continued) 

 
B. Total OPEB Liability (continued) 

 
Actuarial assumptions (continued) 
The turnover assumptions are based on the 2017 CalPERS Turnover for Miscellaneous Employees table. 
CalPERS periodically studies the mortality, retirement and turnover assumptions for participating 
agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate for each pool.  
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.65% and 3.54% for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumed that contributions would be sufficient to fully fund the liability over a period not to exceed 
30 years. Based on this assumption, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available 
to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. The discount rate used 
historic 27-year real rates of return for each asset class along with an assumed long-term inflation 
assumption to set the discount rate. The expected investment return was offset by investment expenses 
of 25 basis points.  The Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index was used.  

 
C. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for June 30, 2024, were as follows: 
 

Plan Fiduciary Total

OPEB Liability Net Position OPEB Liability

Balance at July 1, 2023 (Measurement date July 1, 2022) 1,797,142$           -$                             1,797,142$           

Changes for the year:

Service cost 11,701                   -                                11,701                   

Interest 61,788                   -                                61,788                   

Changes in assumptions (663)                        -                                (663)                        

Changes in experience (154,182)               -                                (154,182)               

Changes in benefit terms -                                -                                -                                

Employer contributions -                                115,583                 (115,583)               

Benefit payments (115,583)               (115,583)               -                                

         Net changes (196,939)               -                                (196,939)               

Balance at June 30, 2024 (Measurement date June 30, 2023) 1,600,203$           -$                             1,600,203$           

Increase (Decrease)

 
 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for June 30, 2023, were as follows: 
 

Plan Fiduciary Total

OPEB Liability Net Position OPEB Liability

Balance at July 1, 2022 (Measurement date July 1, 2021) 2,123,895$           -$                             2,123,895$           

Changes for the year:

Service cost 16,167                   -                                16,167                   

Interest 44,844                   -                                44,844                   

Changes in assumptions (276,050)               -                                (276,050)               

Changes in experience 10,136                   -                                10,136                   

Changes in benefit terms -                                -                                -                                

Employer contributions -                                121,850                 (121,850)               

Benefit payments (121,850)               (121,850)               -                                

         Net changes (326,753)               -                                (326,753)               

Balance at June 30, 2023 (Measurement date June 30, 2022) 1,797,142$           -$                             1,797,142$           

Increase (Decrease)
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NOTE 11 – TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY (continued) 
 
C. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability (continued) 
 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate 
The following presents the Total OPEB Liability of the District, as well as what the District’s Total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one 
percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:   
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2023: 

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

2.65% 3.65% 4.65%

1,996,467$           1,600,203$           1,662,319$           

Plan's Total OPEB Liability/(Asset)

 
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022: 

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

2.54% 3.54% 4.54%

1,996,467$           1,797,142$           1,662,319$           

Plan's Total OPEB Liability/(Asset)

 
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 
The following presents the Total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s Total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage-point 
lower or one percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:   
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates for June 30, 2023: 
 

Trend Rate Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

3.0% 4.0% 5.0%

1,616,553$           1,600,203$           1,994,691$           
 

 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates for June 30, 2022: 
 

Trend Rate Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

3.0% 4.0% 5.0%

1,616,553$           1,797,142$           1,994,691$           
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NOTE 11 – TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY (continued) 
 
D. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 

OPEB 
 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense/(credit) of 
($81,356) and ($204,903), respectively. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District reported deferred 
outflows of resources related to OPEB for plan contributions subsequent to the measurement date of 
$116,373 and $115,583, respectfully. The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 
OPEB resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the Total OPEB 
liability will be recognized as a reduction of the Total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2025 and 
2024, respectively.  
 

 
NOTE 12 – NET POSITION – NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The net investment in capital assets component of net position was calculated at June 30th as follows: 
 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Net investment in capital assets:

Capital assets – not being depreciated 4,197,415$         1,555,380$         

Capital assets – being depreciated, net 22,896,188         23,619,797         
Loans payable – current portion (949,811)             (931,320)             

Loans payable – non-current portion (6,759,760)         (7,709,571)         

Unspent proceeds from loan issuance (Note 3) -                             1,326,727           

   Total net investment in capital assets 19,384,032$      17,861,013$      

Description

 
 
 
NOTE 13 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION SAVINGS PLAN 
 
For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in an Internal Revenue Code §457 Deferred 
Compensation Program.  The purpose of this program is to provide deferred compensation for public 
employees that elect to participate in the program.  Eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their 
salary until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.  Until the funds are paid or 
otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for 
income tax purposes. 
 
Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the 
participants.  Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation.  Therefore, these assets are not 
the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors.  
 
The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.  Since the District has little involvement and does not 
perform the investing function for this program, the assets and related liabilities are not shown on the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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NOTE 14 – RISK MANAGEMENT POOL 
 
The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(ACWA/JPIA), an intergovernmental risk sharing pool that provides insurance coverage and related services. 
 

A. Entity ACWA-JPIA

B. Purpose

C. Participants As of September 30, 2023 – 401 member districts

D. Governance Nine representatives employed by members

E. District payments for FY 2024:

Property/Liability policy $101,882

Workers' compensation policy $55,040

F. Condensed financial information September 30, 2023

Audit dated March 20, 2024

Statement of financial position: Sept 30, 2023

Total assets 288,462,503$      

Deferred outflows 4,654,911              

Total liabilities 167,203,667         

Deferred inflows 5,200,835              

Net position 120,712,912$      

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:

Total revenues 248,013,664$      

Total expenses (240,084,673)       

Change in net position 7,928,991              

Beginning – net position 112,783,921         

Ending – net position 120,712,912$      

G. Member agencies share of year-end financial position Not Calculated

To pool member contributions and realize the 

advantages of self-insurance
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NOTE 14 – RISK MANAGEMENT POOL (continued) 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. At June 30, 2024, the District participated 
in the liability, property, and workers compensation programs of the ACWA/JPIA as follows: 

• Property coverage of $150 million, per occurrence, with liability limits varying by property. Property 
loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if replaced within two years after the loss, 
otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $150 million, subject to a 
deductible between $500 and $5,000 depending on the type of property. Property coverage includes 
flood coverage with various deductibles and earthquake coverage with deductibles of 5% per unit of 
insurance, $75,000 minimum. 

• Liability coverage of $5 million, per occurrence, with self-insurance and additional excess coverage 
layers up to $60 million. 

• Crime coverage: Limit of coverage $100,000 with a deductible of $1,000. 

• Workers Compensation of $2 million each accident or each employee. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and there 
were no reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the years ending June 30, 2024, 2023, and 
2022. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can 
be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims 
that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2024, 
2023, and 2022. 
 

NOTE 15 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Construction Contracts 
The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or 
modification of water facilities and distribution systems within its service area. As of June 30, 2024, the 
District had approximately $2,572,500 in open construction contracts related to projects in Construction in 
process. 
 
Excluded Leases – Short-Term Leases and De Minimis Leases 
The District does not recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources for short-term leases. 
Short-term leases are certain leases that have a maximum possible term under the lease contract of 12-
months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of being exercised.  

Also, de minimis lessor or lessee leases are certain leases (i.e., room rental, copiers, printers, postage 
machines) that regardless of their lease contract period are de minimis with regards to their aggregate total 
dollar amount to the financial statements as a whole. 

Grant Awards 
Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to 
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.  
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant. 

Litigation 
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.  After 
consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will not 
materially affect its financial condition. 
 

6.1 - 64



 

 56 
 

SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

 
NOTE 16 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The District has evaluated subsequent events through December 18, 2024, the date which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

Measurement 

Date

District's 

Proportion of 

the Net Pension 

Liability

District's 

Proportionate 

Share of the Net 

Pension 

Liability

District's 

Covered Payroll

District's 

Proportionate 

Share of the Net 

Pension 

Liability as a 

Percentage of 

Covered Payroll

Plan's Fiduciary 

Net Position as a 

Percentage of the 

Plan's Total 

Pension Liability 

June 30, 2014 0.021380% 1,329,971$         1,135,330$         117.14% 83.03%

June 30, 2015 0.017960% 1,435,475           1,332,329           107.74% 82.98%

June 30, 2016 0.020598% 1,782,379           1,272,122           140.11% 79.61%

June 30, 2017 0.021237% 2,106,130           1,458,545           144.40% 77.49%

June 30, 2018 0.021488% 2,070,657           1,591,177           130.13% 78.69%

June 30, 2019 0.022485% 2,304,037           1,703,662           135.24% 77.91%

June 30, 2020 0.023356% 2,541,228           1,726,184           147.22% 76.40%

June 30, 2021 0.025185% 1,362,061           1,753,518           77.68% 87.97%

June 30, 2022 0.012118% 1,399,678           1,994,705           70.17% 88.74%

June 30, 2023 0.011564% 1,442,654           2,029,740           71.08% 88.93%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:

There were no changes in benefits.

Changes in Assumptions:

From fiscal year June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016:

GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension

plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The discount rate

of 7.50% used for the June 30, 2014, measurement date was net of administrative expenses. The discount rate

of 7.65% used for the June 30, 2015, measurement date is without reduction of pension plan administrative

expense.

From fiscal year June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017:

There were no changes in assumptions.

From fiscal year June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018:

The discount rate was reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%.

From fiscal years June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2022:

There were no significant changes in assumptions.

From fiscal year June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023:

The discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90% and the inflation rate from 2.50% to 2.30%..

From fiscal year June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024:

There were no significant changes in assumptions.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) Miscellaneous Plan

Last Ten Fiscal Years*
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Schedule of the District's Contributions to the Pension Plan 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

Fiscal Year

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution

Contributions 

in Relation to 

the Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution

Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess) Covered Payroll

Contributions 

as a Percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll

June 30, 2015 73,314$               (573,314)$           (500,000)$           1,332,329           5.50%

June 30, 2016 157,182               (157,182)             -                              1,272,122           12.36%

June 30, 2017 176,792               (176,792)             -                              1,458,545           12.12%

June 30, 2018 207,207               (207,207)             -                              1,591,177           13.02%

June 30, 2019 250,483               (250,483)             -                              1,703,662           14.70%

June 30, 2020 313,392               (313,392)             -                              1,726,184           18.16%

June 30, 2021 349,774               (349,774)             -                              1,753,518           19.95%

June 30, 2022 388,682               (2,189,071)          (1,800,389)          1,838,826           21.14%

June 30, 2023 369,568               (369,568)             -                              1,994,705           18.53%

June 30, 2024 220,139               (220,139)             -                              2,029,740           10.85%

Notes to Schedule:

Fiscal Year Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost 

Method

Asset Valuation 

Method Inflation

Investment 

Rate of Return

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2013 Entry Age Fair Value 2.75% 7.65%

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2014 Entry Age Fair Value 2.75% 7.65%

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2015 Entry Age Fair Value 2.75% 7.65%

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2016 Entry Age Fair Value 2.75% 7.15%

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2017 Entry Age Fair Value 2.50% 7.15%

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2018 Entry Age Fair Value 2.50% 7.15%

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2019 Entry Age Fair Value 2.50% 7.15%

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2020 Entry Age Fair Value 2.50% 7.15%

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2021 Entry Age Fair Value 2.30% 6.90%

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2021 Entry Age Fair Value 2.30% 6.90%

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed
Salary Increases Depending on age, service, and type of employment
Investment Rate of Return Net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement Age 50 years (2.7%@55), 50 years (2.0%@55), 52 years (2.0%@62)
Mortality Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the 

most recent CalPERS Experience Study adopted by the CalPERS Board.

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first implementation year; therefore, only ten years are shown.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) Miscellaneous Plan

Last Ten Fiscal Years*
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Schedule of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Measurement Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Total OPEB liability:

Service cost 11,701$            16,167$            17,015$            11,702$            19,190$            

Interest 61,788               44,844               54,646               76,448               94,207               

Changes in assumptions (663)                   (276,050)          8,778                 339,880            (257,933)          

Differences between expected and actual experience (154,182)          10,136               85,297               11,205               (215,234)          

Changes of benefit terms -                           -                           (440,821)          -                           -                           

Benefit payments (115,583)          (121,850)          (140,305)          (145,445)          (153,549)          

Net change in total OPEB liability (196,939)          (326,753)          (415,390)          293,790            (513,319)          

Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,797,142         2,123,895         2,539,285         2,245,495         2,758,814         

Total OPEB liability - ending 1,600,203         1,797,142         2,123,895         2,539,285         2,245,495         

Plan fiduciary net position:

Contributions - employer 115,583            121,850            140,305            145,445            153,549            

Benefit payments (115,583)          (121,850)          (140,305)          (145,445)          (153,549)          

District's total OPEB liability 1,600,203$      1,797,142$      2,123,895$      2,539,285$      2,245,495$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Covered payroll 1,886,454$      1,838,826$      1,753,518$      1,726,184$      1,703,662$      

District's total OPEB liability as a percentage 
of covered payroll 84.83% 97.73% 121.12% 147.10% 131.80%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:
Measurement Date June 30, 2019 – There were no changes of benefits terms

Measurement Date June 30, 2020 – There were no changes of benefits terms

Measurement Date June 30, 2021 – Change in census

Measurement Date June 30, 2022 – There were no changes of benefits terms

Measurement Date June 30, 2023 – There were no changes of benefits terms

Changes in Assumptions:

Measurement Date June 30, 2019 – Change in projected payroll growth to 2.75% and long-term medical trend rate to 4.00%

Measurement Date June 30, 2020 – Change in discount rate to 2.20%

Measurement Date June 30, 2021 – Change in discount rate to 2.16%

Measurement Date June 30, 2022 – Change in discount rate to 3.54%

Measurement Date June 30, 2023 – Change in discount rate to 3.65%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only seven years are shown.

Last Ten Fiscal Years*
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Schedule of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Measurement Date June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Total OPEB liability:

Service cost 18,631$            18,018$            

Interest 94,606               96,029               

Changes in assumptions (33,754)             -                           

Benefit payments (169,107)          (143,918)          

Net change in total OPEB liability (89,624)             (29,871)             

Total OPEB liability - beginning 2,848,438         2,878,309         

Total OPEB liability - ending 2,758,814         2,848,438         

Plan fiduciary net position:

Contributions - employer 169,107            143,918            

Benefit payments (169,107)          (143,918)          

District's total OPEB liability 2,758,814$      2,848,438$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00%

Covered payroll 1,591,177$      1,458,545$      

District's total OPEB liability as a percentage 
of covered payroll 173.38% 195.29%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 – There were no changes of benefits terms

Measurement Date June 30, 2018 – There were no changes of benefits terms

Changes in Assumptions:
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 – There were no changes in assumptions

Measurement Date June 30, 2018 – There were no changes in assumptions except change in discount rate

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only seven years are shown.

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

 

6.1 - 70



 

 61 
 

SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Schedule of the District's Contributions to the OPEB Plan 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 

 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Actuarially determined contribution* 116,373$          115,583$          121,850$          140,200$          145,445$          

(Pay-as-you-go funding with No Plan Assets)

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined 

contributions (116,373)          (115,583)          (121,850)          (140,200)          (145,445)          

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

Covered-employee payroll 1,886,454$      1,838,826$      1,753,518$      1,726,184$      1,703,662$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 6.17% 6.29% 6.95% 8.12% 8.54%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine 

Contribution Rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age

Amortization method Closed period, level percent of pay (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)

Amortization period 20-years 20-years 20-years 20-years 20-years

Asset valuation method Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value

Discount rate 3.65% 3.54% 2.16% 2.20% 3.50%

Inflation 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll increases 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%

Mortality (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)

Morbidity Not Valued Not Valued Not Valued Not Valued Not Valued

Disability Not Valued Not Valued Not Valued Not Valued Not Valued

Retirement (3) (3) (3) (3) (3)

Percent Married - Spouse Support 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%

Healthcare trend rates 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

(1) Closed period, level percent of pay

(2) SOA Pub-2010 using Scale MP-2017

(3) CalPERS Public Agency Miscellaneous 2.7% @55, 2.0% @55 and 2.0% @62

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only seven years are shown.

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

 

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB codification P22.101 or P52.101 to pay 

related benefits for the OPEB plan. 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

Schedule of the District's Contributions to the OPEB Plan 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Actuarially determined contribution* 153,549$          169,107$          

(Pay-as-you-go funding with No Plan Assets)

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined 

contributions (153,549)          (169,107)          

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                         -$                         

Covered-employee payroll 1,591,177$      1,458,545$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.65% 11.59%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine 

Contribution Rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry Age Entry Age

Amortization method Closed period, level percent of pay (1) (1)

Amortization period 20-years 20-years

Asset valuation method Fair Value Fair Value

Discount rate 3.50% 3.40%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll increases 3.00% 3.00%

Mortality (2) (2)

Morbidity Not Valued Not Valued

Disability Not Valued Not Valued

Retirement (3) (3)

Percent Married - Spouse Support 80% 80%

Healthcare trend rates 6.50% to 5.00% 6.50% to 5.00%

(1) Closed period, level percent of pay

(2) SOA Pub-2010 using Scale MP-2017

(3) CalPERS Public Agency Miscellaneous 2.7% @55, 2.0% @55 and 2.0% @62

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only seven years are shown.

Last Ten Fiscal Years*
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Combining Schedules of Balance Sheets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024  
 
 

Water Recycled

Fund Water Fund Total

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 8,344,078$      -$                         8,344,078$      

Accrued interest receivable 75,095               1,350                 76,445               

Accounts receivable, net 1,111,462         120,965            1,232,427         

Property taxes receivable 74,566               -                           74,566               

Grant receivable 23,736               -                           23,736               

Other receivables 7,667                 -                           7,667                 

Notes receivable -                           10,000               10,000               

Inventory – materials and supplies 234,904            -                           234,904            

Prepaid expenses 76,397               -                           76,397               

Total current assets 9,947,905         132,315            10,080,220      

Non-current assets:

Restricted – cash and cash equivalents 1,037,449         -                           1,037,449         

Investments 1,974,692         -                           1,974,692         

Notes receivable -                           35,000               35,000               

Interagency due (to)/from 1,093,007         (1,093,007)       -                           

Investment in SMGA – JPA 189,423            -                           189,423            

Capital assets – not being depreciated 4,197,415         -                           4,197,415         

Capital assets – being depreciated, net 18,290,640      4,605,548         22,896,188      

Total non-current assets 26,782,626      3,547,541         30,330,167      

Total assets 36,730,531      3,679,856         40,410,387      

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred amounts related to net OPEB liability 104,736            11,637               116,373            

Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 1,229,694         136,633            1,366,327         

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,334,430         148,270            1,482,700         

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 38,064,961$    3,828,126$      41,893,087$    
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Combining Schedules of Balance Sheets (continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024  
 
 

Water Recycled

Fund Water Fund Total

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 566,908$          46,160$            613,068$          

Customer deposits for services 112,912            7,555                 120,467            

Accrued interest payable 87,638               -                      87,638               

Long-term liabilities – due within one year:

Compensated absences 40,400               3,995                 44,395               

Loan payable 675,431            274,380            949,811            

Total OPEB liability 95,464               10,607               106,071            

Total current liabilities 1,578,753         342,697            1,921,450         

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:

Compensated absences 103,431            11,985               115,416            

Loan payable 6,216,059         543,701            6,759,760         

Total OPEB liability 1,344,719         149,413            1,494,132         

Net pension liability 1,298,389         144,265            1,442,654         

Total non-current liabilities 8,962,598         849,364            9,811,962         

Total liabilities 10,541,351      1,192,061         11,733,412      

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 1,069,033         118,781            1,187,814         

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,069,033         118,781            1,187,814         

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 15,596,565      3,787,467         19,384,032      

Unrestricted 10,858,012      (1,270,183)       9,587,829         

Total net position 26,454,577      2,517,284         28,971,861      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net 

position 38,064,961$    3,828,126$      41,893,087$    
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Combining Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Water Recycled

Fund Water Fund Total

Operating revenues:

Water sales 4,387,487$      481,289$          4,868,776$      

Water service 2,682,545         97,843               2,780,388         

Other fees and charges 40,089               300                     40,389               

Total operating revenues 7,110,121         579,432            7,689,553         

Operating expenses:

Source of supply 143,902            -                           143,902            

Pumping 516,628            -                           516,628            

Water treatment 514,224            -                           514,224            

Recycled water -                           573,445            573,445            

Transmission and distribution 2,191,237         -                           2,191,237         

Finance, customer service and conservation 1,012,598         -                           1,012,598         

General and administrative 852,067            -                           852,067            

Total operating expenses 5,230,656         573,445            5,804,101         

Operating income before depreciation 1,879,465         5,987                 1,885,452         

Depreciation expense (1,048,187)       (189,002)          (1,237,189)       

Operating income (loss) 831,278            (183,015)          648,263            

Non-operating revenues(expenses):

Property taxes 1,557,187         -                           1,557,187         

Change in investment in SMGA-JPA (202,282)          -                           (202,282)          

Investment earnings 386,058            2,832                 388,890            

Interest expense (175,275)          -                           (175,275)          

Other non-operating revenues 16,683               -                           16,683               

Total non-operating income 1,582,371         2,832                 1,585,203         

Change in net position before capital contributions 2,413,649         (180,183)          2,233,466         

Capital contributions:

Capacity buy-in fee 494,715            7,413                 502,128            

State capital grant 293,427            -                           293,427            

Total capital contributions 788,142            7,413                 795,555            

Change in net position 3,201,791         (172,770)          3,029,021         

Net position:

Beginning of year 23,252,786      2,690,054         25,942,840      

End of year 26,454,577$    2,517,284$      28,971,861$    
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Board of Directors 
Scotts Valley Water District 
Scotts Valley, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Scotts Valley Water District as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise Scotts Valley Water District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 18, 2024.   
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Scotts Valley Water District's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Scotts Valley Water District's internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Scotts Valley Water District's 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Scotts Valley Water District's financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.   
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control 
or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Walnut Creek, California 
December 18, 2024 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 

 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Changes in net position:
Operating revenues $4,499,859 $4,048,964 $4,549,738 $5,647,160 $6,025,665
Opertating expenses (5,067,252) (5,692,368) (5,613,137) (6,242,979) (5,715,261)

Opertating income (loss) (567,393) (1,643,404) (1,063,399) (595,819) 310,404
Non-Operating revenues (expenses)

Property Taxes Ad-Valorem 724,433 775,679 839,095 923,894 975,085
Investment earnings 24,848 39,106 25,159 22,574 35,893
Interest expense (361,513) (417,796) (703,031) (143,774) (94,956)
Other non-operating revenues 40,610 498,070 8,468 81,241 62,910
Other non-operating expenses -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Total non-operating revenues(expenses), net 428,378 895,059 169,691 883,935 978,932
Net income before capital contributions (139,015) (748,345) (893,708) 288,116 1,289,336

Capital contributions 399,554 335,704 803,279 515,963 434,636
Changes in net position 260,539 (412,641) (90,429) 804,079 1,723,972

Net position, beginning of period 16,366,105 16,626,644 16,214,003 14,562,508 15,366,587
Prior period adjustments -                            -                            (1,561,066) -                            -                            

Net position, end of period 16,626,644 16,214,003 14,562,508 15,366,587 17,090,559

Net position by component

Net investment in capital assets 12,154,452 13,665,884 14,790,579 16,664,117 16,974,413
Debt service (restricted): 932,329 749,404 -                            -                            -                            
Unrestricted 3,539,863 1,798,715 (228,071) (1,297,530) 116,146

Total net position 16,626,644 16,214,003 14,562,508 15,366,587 17,090,559

Fiscal Year

 
 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Changes in net position:
Operating revenues $6,674,839 $6,985,681 $7,454,898 $7,605,864 $7,689,553
Opertating expenses (6,089,055) (7,012,656) (6,410,365) (7,967,504) (7,041,290)

Opertating income (loss) 585,784 (26,975) 1,044,533 (361,640) 648,263
Non-Operating revenues (expenses)

Property Taxes Ad-Valorem 1,030,321 1,057,540 1,241,664 1,398,325 1,557,187
Investment earnings 66,477 6,936 (29,611) 90,570 388,890
Interest expense (86,262) (75,834) (113,485) (193,897) (175,275)
Other non-operating revenues 119,616 78,213 71,587 153,318 16,683
Other non-operating expenses (240,719) (357,480) (425,758) (224,364) (202,282)

Total non-operating revenues(expenses), net 889,433 709,375 744,397 1,223,952 1,585,203
Net income before capital contributions 1,475,217 682,400 1,788,930 862,312 2,233,466

Capital contributions 761,665 569,604 631,711 2,080,442 795,555

Changes in net position 2,236,882 1,252,004 2,420,641 2,942,754 3,029,021

Net position, beginning of period 17,090,559 19,327,441 20,579,445 23,000,086 25,942,840

Prior period adjustments -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Net position, end of period 19,327,441 20,579,445 23,000,086 25,942,840 28,971,861

Net position by component

Net investment in capital assets 17,684,486 20,391,522 21,084,476 17,861,013 19,384,032
Debt service (restricted): -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Unrestricted 1,642,955 187,923 1,915,610 8,081,827 9,587,829

Total net position 19,327,441 20,579,445 23,000,086 25,942,840 28,971,861

Fiscal Year

 
 
Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Operating Revenues by Sources 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year
Water Sales

(Potable Water)

Water Sales
(Recycled 

Water)

Service Charges 
(Potable & 
Recycled 
Water) Other

Total Operating 
Revenue

2015 2,350,163$         317,926$             1,566,851$         264,919$             4,499,859$         
2016 2,242,642 382,366 1,348,590 75,366 4,048,964
2017 2,646,488 352,298 1,497,782 53,170 4,549,738

2018 3,478,119 455,073 1,671,070 42,898 5,647,160
2019 3,605,178 446,873 1,927,303 46,311 6,025,665
2020 4,057,953 508,970 2,076,643 31,273 6,674,839

2021 4,183,900 543,334 2,230,855 27,592 6,985,681
2022 4,358,136 555,691 2,509,412 31,659 7,454,898
2023 4,478,040 418,822 2,666,947 42,055 7,605,864
2024 4,387,487 481,289 2,780,388 40,389 7,689,553  

 
Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Non-Operating Revenues  
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year
Investment 

Income * Property Taxes
Interest 
Expense

Other Income & 
Expenses, net

Net Non-

Operating 
Revenue / 
(Expense)

2015 24,848 724,433 (361,513) 40,610 428,378
2016 39,106 775,679 (417,796) 498,070 895,059
2017 25,159 839,095 (703,031) 8,468 169,691
2018 22,574 923,894 (143,774) 81,241 883,935

2019 35,893 975,085 (94,956) 62,910 978,932

2020 66,477 1,030,321 (86,262) (121,103) 889,433
2021 6,936 1,057,540 (75,834) (279,267) 709,375

2022 (29,611) 1,241,664 (113,485) (354,171) 744,397
2023 90,570 1,398,325 (193,897) (71,046) 1,223,952
2024 388,890 1,557,187 (175,275) (185,599) 1,585,203

* Includes mark-to-market valuation adjustment of LAIF holdings  
 
Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Operating Expenses by Activity  
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year

Source of 

Supply Pumping

Water 

Treatment

Recycled 

Water

Transmission 

& Distribution

Water Use 

Efficiency

Finance & 

Customer 

Service*

General & 

Admin*

Total 

Operating 

Expenses

2015 1,638$              478,911$         558,991$         102,152$         1,129,053$        202,521$         188,335$         1,522,036$      4,183,637$      

2016 97,655 524,177 688,601 546,568 776,096 241,892 207,833 1,695,591 4,778,413

2017 150,614 536,653 660,704 472,105 797,494 158,507 192,925 1,706,288 4,675,290

2018 163,709 445,655 304,122 480,855 1,917,154 ** 713,891 871,541 4,896,927

2019 99,307 466,512 293,069 434,404 1,849,596 ** 649,335 837,784 4,630,007

2020 182,735 480,655 239,722 472,247 1,990,814 ** 659,450 993,681 5,019,304

2021 111,200 464,519 284,701 590,898 2,213,808 ** 1,064,016 1,163,905 5,893,047

2022 104,454 469,102 439,819 536,090 1,877,505 ** 816,887 1,007,411 5,251,268

2023 104,053 488,373 310,960 847,463 2,253,229 ** 1,433,076 1,321,955 6,759,109

2024 143,902 516,628 514,224 573,445 2,191,237 ** 1,012,598 852,067 5,804,101

* Finance included in General & Admin for the period FY 2014 through FY 2017

**  Water Use Efficiency included in Finance & Customer Service for the period FY 2018 through FY 2021  
 

Source: Provided by District 
 

 
 

6.1 - 84



 

 72 
 

SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Revenue Base 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 

 

Portable Water

Fiscal Consumption

Year (Million Gallons)

2015 326

2016 312

2017 316

2018 344

2019 325

2020 329

2021 340

2022 332

2023 295

2024 302  
 

Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Customers by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

As of 
June 30

Single Family 
Residential

Multi Family 
Residential

Commercial / 
Institutional Fire Service

Landscape - 
Potable

Landscape - 
Recycled Bulk Water Total

2015 3,240 118 291 400 82 62 2 4,195

2016 3,239 117 284 403 81 62 6 4,192
2017 3,244 117 287 412 84 63 18 4,225

2018 3,262 117 290 419 84 64 20 4,256
2019 3,300 117 290 442 83 67 17 4,316
2020 3,333 117 287 453 82 65 12 4,349

2021 3,372 116 298 467 81 60 11 4,405
2022 3,388 117 298 479 79 61 21 4,443
2023 3,436 118 299 501 78 59 7 4,498

2024 3,468 118 299 510 77 60 10 4,542  
 

Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 

 

Fiscal
Year

Refunding 
Bonds

Certificates of 
Participation

Notes 
Payable

Private 
Placement

Total
Debt

Total Debt per 
Capita

2015 785,000$          2,680,000$       4,535,000$       -$                         8,000,000$       659.14$             
2016 -                           2,520,000 4,325,000 -                           6,845,000 561.30               

2017 -                           -                           -                           6,049,548 6,049,548 496.03               
2018 -                           -                           -                           5,596,621 5,596,621 458.93               
2019 -                           -                           -                           5,136,591 5,136,591 425.14               

2020 -                           -                           -                           4,668,012 4,668,012 386.78               
2021 -                           -                           -                           4,100,714 4,100,714 334.53               
2022 -                           -                           -                           9,552,882 9,552,882 799.87               

2023 -                           -                           -                           8,640,891 8,640,891 727.84               
2024 -                           -                           -                           7,709,571 7,709,571 652.47               

 
Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Debt Service Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 

 

Fiscal Year
Total 

Revenues
Operating 
Expenses

Net Available 
Revenues Principal Interest

Total Debt 
Service

Coverage 
Ratio

2015 5,289,750 4,183,637 1,106,113 495,000 361,513 856,513 1.29141

2016 * 5,361,819 4,778,413 583,406 788,351 268,352 1,056,703 0.55210
2017 * 5,422,460 4,675,290 747,170 445,881 175,881 621,762 1.20170
2018 6,674,869 4,896,927 1,777,942 452,927 143,774 596,701 2.97962
2019 7,099,553 4,630,007 2,469,546 460,030 94,956 554,986 4.44974

2020 7,891,253 5,019,304 2,871,949 468,579 86,262 554,841 5.17617

2021 8,128,370 5,893,047 2,235,323 567,298 75,834 643,132 3.47568
2022 8,768,149 5,251,268 3,516,881 662,832 113,485 776,317 4.53021

2023 9,248,077 6,759,109 2,488,968 911,991 193,897 1,105,888 2.25065
2024 9,652,313 5,804,101 3,848,212 931,320 175,275 1,106,595 3.47753

* Does not include principal and interest related to the defeasance of the 2004 Refunding Certificates of Participation
 and 2011 Wells Fargo Bank Loan.  

 
Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Population Estimates – City of Scotts Valley 
2015-2019 with 2010 Benchmark and 2020-2024 with 2020 Benchmark 
 
 

Santa Cruz County
Scotts Valley**

April 1, 2010 11,580
January 1, 2015 12,137
January 1, 2016 12,195
January 1, 2017 12,196
January 1, 2018 12,195
January 1, 2019 12,082

April 1, 2020 12,069
January 1, 2021 12,258
January 1, 2022 11,943
January 1, 2023 11,872
January 1, 2024 11,816

 

* Data source for 2010 is the 2010 U.S. Census. Data for

2020 is the 2020 U.S. Census.  All other data from
 California Department of Finance.

**  The District Service Area includes most of the incorporated area
of the City of Scotts Valley as well as a portion of the unincorporated 
area north of the City.

 
 

Source: Provided by Santa Cruz County 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Full Time Equivalent Employees by Department 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year Operations

General & 

Administrative

Finance & 
Customer 

Service Engineering

Water Use 

Efficiency Total
2015 10 2 4 1 1 18
2016 9 2 3 1 1 16
2017 10 2 3 1 1 17
2018 10 2.5 3 1 1 17.5
2019 11 2.5 3 1 1 18.5

2020 11 2.5 4 1 -                               18.5
2021 11 2.5 4 1 -                               18.5
2022 11 3.0 4 1 -                               19.0
2023 11 3.5 4 1 -                               19.5
2024 11 2.0 4 1 -                               18.0
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Source: Provided by District 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Direct and Overlapping Debt 
As of June 30, 2024 
 

 
Estimated

Share of

Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable
(1)

Debt

Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt:
Cabrillo Joint Community College District $ 91,586,964          5.807% 5,318,455      
Scotts Valley Unified School District 29,845,000          61.116% 18,240,070   
Scotts Valley Water District -                         100.000% -                   
Santa Cruz Library Facilities Community Facilities District No. 2016-1 35,785,000          6.466% 2,313,858      
City of Scotts Valley Community Facilities District No. 97-1 1,730,000            84.245% 1,457,442      

Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 27,329,825   

Overlapping General Fund Debt:
Santa Cruz County General Fund Obligations 167,498,341       5.855% 9,807,028      
Santa Cruz County Office of Education Certificates of Participation 6,612,042            5.855% 387,135         
Scotts Valley Unified School District Certificates of Participation 9,410,000            61.116% 5,751,016      
City of Scotts Valley Certificates of Participation 6,965,000            87.686% 6,107,330      
City of Scotts Valley Pension Obligation Bonds 430,000                87.686% 377,050         

Total Overlapping General Fund Debt 22,429,559   

Overlapping Tax Increment Debt (Successor Agency) 9,330,000            99.031% 9,239,592      

Total Direct Debt -                   

Total Overlapping Debt 58,998,976   

Combined Total Debt 58,998,976   (2)

2023-24 Assessed Valuation: 3,150,148,855    

Ratios to 2023-24 Assessed Valuation:
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 0.80%

Total Direct Debt 0.00%
Combined Total Debt 1.72%

Ratios to Redevelopment Successor Agency Incremental Valuation 1,184,292,770    

Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt 0.78%

(1)

(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the District is estimated using taxable assessed property value. Applicable 
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping district's assessed value that is within the boundaries 
of the District divided by the District's total taxable assessed value.

 
Source: Provided by Santa Cruz County 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Assessed Valuations – Santa Cruz County 
2014-2024 
 
 

Local
Fiscal Year Secured Utility Unsecured Total

2015 1,850,583,702                -                            69,765,255          1,920,348,957            

2016 1,977,106,591                -                            74,898,080          2,052,004,671            
2017 2,078,152,308                -                            84,632,026          2,162,784,334            
2018 2,196,063,260                -                            87,973,799          2,284,037,059            
2019 2,340,152,176                -                            103,841,992        2,443,994,168            

2020 2,453,773,705                -                            99,809,951          2,553,583,656            
2021 2,579,219,859                -                            103,267,265        2,682,487,124            
2022 2,749,227,175                -                            111,343,087        2,860,570,262            
2023 3,019,130,440                -                            131,013,415        3,150,143,855            
2024 3,275,747,132                -                            150,887,948        3,426,635,080            

Residential Commercial Industrial Other Total Local

Property Property Property Property Secured Property

2,762,427,015$     311,119,739$                 130,111,652$       72,088,726$        3,275,747,132$          

Project Total Base Year Incremental

Area Assessed Valuation Valuation Valuation

Scotts Valley 1,600,704,924                416,412,154          1,184,292,770    

2023-24 Total Local Secured Assessed Valuation Breakdown

2023-24 Assessed Valuation of Redevelopment Agency Project Area Within the 

District

 
 
Source: Provided by Santa Cruz County 
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SCOTTS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Typical Total Tax Rate Per $100 of Assessed Valuation 
(TRA 004-053) 
 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

General 1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   1.000000   
Scotts Valley Unified School District 0.041027   0.075224   0.051200   0.083657   0.068688   0.086437   0.077672   0.076107   0.071782   0.066545   
Cabrillo Community College District 0.036941   0.036693   0.032597   0.024250   0.021023   0.021172   0.024746   0.023703   0.024048   0.024343   

Total All Property 1.077968   1.111917   1.083797   1.107907   1.089711   1.107609   1.102418   1.099810   1.095830   1.090888   

 
Source: Provided by Santa Cruz County 
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Budget Status - Balance

Period: 07/01/24 - 11/30/2024 58%

FY 2024
YTD Actual

FY 2025
YTD Actual

FY 2025
vs. FY 2024

YOY
% change

FY 2025 
Budget

FY 2025
Remaining 

Balance %
Period: 5 months 07/01/23 - 07/01/24 -

11/30/2023 11/30/2024

Potable Water - Fund 01
Water Sales & Services  (R10, R20) 3,305,615$          3,571,746$      266,131$         8% 7,647,200$     4,075,454$       53%
New Connections  (R25) 78,812$               500$  (78,312)$         -99% 178,900$        178,400$          100%
Other Revenue  (R30, R40) 101,477$             175,309$         73,831$           73% 6,018,207$     5,842,898$       97%
Potable Water Total 3,485,904$          3,747,555$      261,651$         8% 13,844,307$   10,096,752$     73%

Recycled Water - Fund 02
Water Sales & Services  (R10, R20) 352,747$             436,277$         83,530$           24% 593,800$        157,523$          27%
New Connections  (R25) -$  -$  -$  - -$  -$  #DIV/0!
Other Revenue  (R30, R40) 91$  -$  (91)$  -100% 16,600$          16,600$            100%
Recycled Water Total 352,838$             436,277$         83,439$           24% 610,400$        174,123$          29%

TOTAL REVENUE 3,838,743$          4,183,832$      345,090$         9% 14,454,707$   10,270,875$     71%

Expenses - Fund 01 and Fund 02 Combined
Salaries & Benefits  (E01) 1,260,917$          1,305,866$      44,949$           4% 3,256,312$     1,950,446$       60%
Services & Supplies  (E03-E80) 1,228,992$          1,143,506$      (85,486)$         -7% 3,893,809$     2,750,303$       71%
Project Expenses 815,404$             410,826$         (404,578)$       -50% 12,522,354$   12,111,528$     97%
Debt Service - Principal 931,320$             949,811$         18,491$           2% 949,811$        -$                      0%
TOTAL EXPENSES * 4,236,633$          3,810,009$      (426,624)$       -10% 20,622,286$   16,812,277$     82%

NET REVENUE (397,890)$           373,824$         771,714$         -194% (6,167,579)$    (6,541,403)$      106%

Period: 07/01/24 - 11/30/24 (5 months)
Total Revenue 3,838,743$          4,183,832$      345,090$         9% 14,454,707$   10,270,875$     71%
Total Expenses * 4,236,633$          3,810,009$      (426,624)$       -10% 20,622,286$   16,812,277$     82%

Net Revenue (397,890)$           373,824$         771,714$         -194% (6,167,579)$    0%

Period: 07/01/24 - 10/31/24 (4 months)
Total Revenue 3,241,601$          3,579,207$      337,606$         10% 14,454,707$   10,875,500$     75%
Total Expenses * 4,037,543$          3,332,128$      (705,415)$       -17% 20,622,286$   17,290,158$     84%

Net Revenue (795,942)$           247,079$         1,043,021$      -131% (6,167,579)$    0%

* Expense totals do not include depreciation expense

FY Remain:

7.1 - 1



Period: 07/01/24 - 11/30/2024 58%

FY 2024
YTD Actual

FY 2025
YTD Actual

FY 2025
vs. FY 2024

YOY
% change

FY 2025 
Budget

FY 2025
Remaining 

Balance %

Fund 01 Potable Water

R10 Operating Revenue - Water Sales
01-000-41101 Residential Consumption - SF 1,306,858$        1,415,628$       108,771$          8% 2,770,200$        1,354,572$       49%
01-000-41102 Residential Consumption - MF 98,457$             95,996$            (2,462)$            -3% 238,600$           142,604$          60%
01-000-41103 CII Consumption 433,681$           533,722$          100,041$          23% 1,126,900$        593,178$          53%
01-000-41105 Irrigation Consumption 253,807$           310,626$          56,819$            22% 516,200$           205,574$          40%
01-000-41106 CII Consumption - Other 42,516$             56,235$            13,720$            32% -$                      (56,235)$            
01-000-41200 Other - Bulk Water 58,283$             22,044$            (36,239)$          -62% 82,500$             60,456$            73%

R10 Sub Totals: 2,193,602$        2,434,252$       240,650$          11% 4,734,400$        2,300,148$       49%

R20 Operating Revenue - Water Services
01-000-41300 Other - Late Penalty 13,256$             10,742$            (2,514)$            -19% 18,100$             7,358$              41%
01-000-42100 Standby Basic Meter Charge 1,063,754$        1,089,983$       26,229$            2% 2,812,800$        1,722,817$       61%
01-000-42121 Standby FP Basic Meter Charge 31,877$             33,044$            1,167$             4% 75,000$             41,956$            56%
01-000-43300 Other Operating Revenue 3,125$               3,725$             600$                19% 6,900$              3,175$              46%

R20 Sub Totals: 1,112,013$        1,137,495$       25,482$            2% 2,912,800$        1,775,305$       61%

R25 Operating Revenue - New Connections
01-000-42101 Other Meter Fee 2,166$               -$                     (2,166)$            -100% 7,600$              7,600$              100%
01-000-42102 Other Capacity Fee 76,146$             -$                     (76,146)$          -100% 144,700$           144,700$          100%
01-000-42120 Other FP Meter Fee -$                      -$                     -$                      19,600$             19,600$            100%
01-000-43100 Other Will Serve 500$                  500$                -$                     0% 1,000$              500$                 50%
01-000-43200 Other Dev Proj Review -$                      -$                     -$                      6,000$              6,000$              100%

R25 Sub Totals: 78,812$             500$                (78,312)$          -99% 178,900$           178,400$          100%

R30 Non-Operating Revenue - Other
01-000-46000 Property Taxes 35,349$             27,208$            (8,141)$            -23% 1,637,267$        1,610,059$       98%
01-000-47110 Interest & Dividend 986$                  34,526$            33,540$            3401% 5,810$              (28,716)$           -494%
01-000-47115 Interest & Dividend - Restrict -$                      -$                      -$                      
01-000-47120 Interest - LAIF 55,631$             76,208$            20,577$            37% 241,100$           164,892$          68%
01-000-47520 Misc. Non-Operating Revenue 617$                  712$                95$                  15% 20,200$             19,488$            96%
01-000-47530 Unrealized Gain/Loss on Invest 8,397$               36,655$            28,258$            337% -$                      (36,655)$            
01-000-47540 Third-Party Reimbursements 498$                  -$                     (498)$               -100% -$                      -$                      
01-000-47560 Rental Revenue -$                      -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                      

R30 Sub Totals: 101,477$           175,309$          46,071$            73% 1,904,377$        1,765,723$       93%

01-000-45230 State Grant - DWR 2021 -$                      -$                     -$                      3,363,830$        3,363,830$       100%
01-000-45231 State Grant - DWR 2022 -$                      -$                     -$                      750,000$           750,000$          100%

R40 Sub Totals: -$                      -$                     -$                      4,113,830$        4,113,830$       100%

Fund 01 Revenue: 3,485,904$        3,747,555$       233,891$          8% 13,844,307$      10,133,407$     73%
Fund 01 Rev Excl Grants & Cap 3,485,904$        3,747,555$       233,891$          8% 9,730,477$        6,019,577$       62%

Budget Status - Revenue

FY Remain:

US Bank & CLASS
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Period: 07/01/24 - 11/30/2024 58%

FY 2024
YTD Actual

FY 2025
YTD Actual

FY 2025
vs. FY 2024

YOY
% change

FY 2025 
Budget

FY 2025
Remaining 

Balance %

Budget Status - Revenue

FY Remain:

Fund 02 Recycled Water

R10 Operating Revenue - Water Sales  
02-000-41105 Irrigation Consumption 311,431$           392,889$          81,458$            26% 491,500$           98,611$            20%
02-000-41200 Other - Bulk Water 1,488$               1,302$             (186)$               -12% -$                      (1,302)$             

R10 Sub Totals: 312,919$           394,191$          81,272$            26% 491,500$           97,309$            20%

02-000-41300 Other - Late Penalty
02-000-42100 Standby Basic Meter Charge 39,603$             41,987$            2,384$             6% 102,300$           60,313$            59%
02-000-43300 Other Operating Revenue 225$                  100$                (125)$               -56% -$                      (100)$                

R20 Sub Totals: 39,828$             42,087$            2,259$             6% 102,300$           60,213$            59%

R25 Operating Revenue - New Connections
02-000-42101 Other Meter Fee -$                      -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                      
02-000-42102 Other Capacity Fee -$                      -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                      

R25 Sub Totals: -$                      -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                      

R30 Non-Operating Revenue - Other
02-000-47110 Interest & Dividend 91$                    -$                     (91)$                 -100% 6,600$              6,600$              100%
02-000-47560 Notes Receivable Payments -$                      -$                     -$                      10,000$             10,000$            100%

R30 Sub Totals: 91$                    -$                     (91)$                 -100% 16,600$             16,600$            100%

Fund 02 Revenue: 352,838$           436,277$          83,439$            24% 610,400$           174,123$          29%
Fund 02 Rev Excl Grants & Cap 352,838$           436,277$          83,439$            24% 610,400$           174,123$          29%

Revenue Totals: 3,838,743$        4,183,832$       317,329$          9% 14,454,707$      10,307,529$     71%
Revenue Total Excl Grants & Cap Contributions 3,838,743$        4,183,832$       317,329$          9% 10,340,877$      6,193,699$       60%
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Period: 07/01/24 - 11/30/2024 58%

FY 2024
YTD Actual

FY 2025
YTD Actual

FY 2025
vs. FY 2024

YOY
% change

FY 2025 
Budget

FY 2025
Remaining 

Balance %

Fund 01 and Fund 02 Combined

Dept Administration
E01 Salaries & Benefits 240,406$             242,632$          2,226$              1% 557,987$      315,355$          57%
E03 General & Admin - Services 109,194$             130,054$          20,860$            19% 343,274$      213,220$          62%
E05 General & Admin - Supplies 4,725$                 6,436$              1,710$              36% 27,620$        21,184$            77%
E10 Source of Supply 240,127$             -$                      (240,127)$        -100% 259,571$      259,571$          100%
E70 Other -$                         -$                      -$                       -$                  -$                       

Dept 100 Sub Totals: 594,452$             379,121$          (215,331)$        -36% 1,188,452$   809,331$          68%

Dept Finance/Customer Service
E01 Salaries & Benefits 247,549$             263,180$          15,632$            6% 649,129$      385,949$          59%
E03 General & Admin - Services 81,833$               116,433$          34,599$            42% 217,550$      101,117$          46%
E05 General & Admin - Supplies -$                         -$                      -$                       4,000$          4,000$              100%
E35 Customer Accounts 158,980$             125,673$          (33,307)$          -21% 306,946$      181,273$          59%
E70 Other 1,630$                 434$                 (1,196)$             -73% 1,000$          566$                 57%
E80 Debt Service - Interest 43,819$               40,591$            (3,227)$             -7% 165,759$      125,168$          76%

Dept 200 Sub Totals: 533,811$             546,311$          12,500$            2% 1,344,384$   798,073$          59%

Dept Operations
E01 Salaries & Benefits 714,699$             717,042$          2,343$              0% 1,835,607$   1,118,565$       61%
E03 General & Admin - Services 93,922$               86,060$            (7,862)$             -8% 324,497$      238,437$          73%
E05 General & Admin - Supplies 21,795$               11,984$            (9,810)$             -45% 60,080$        48,096$            80%
E07 General Production 26,047$               25,819$            (227)$                -1% 154,216$      128,397$          83%
E10 Source of Supply 2,721$                 -$                      (2,721)$             -100% 80,000$        80,000$            100%
E15 Pumping 181,795$             287,069$          105,274$          58% 704,546$      417,477$          59%
E20 Water Treatment 163,539$             167,434$          3,895$              2% 621,100$      453,666$          73%
E25 Transmission & Distribution 89,745$               131,057$          41,312$            46% 471,300$      340,243$          72%
E35 Conservation -$                         -$                      -$                       100$             100$                 100%
E70 Other -$                         -$                      -$                       -$                  -$                       

Dept 300 Sub Totals:  $          1,294,263 1,426,466$       132,204$          10% 4,251,446$   2,824,980$       66%

Dept Engineering
E01 Salaries & Benefits 35,995$               54,666$            18,671$            52% 133,828$      79,162$            59%
E03 General & Admin - Services 4,049$                 3,035$              (1,014)$             -25% 122,150$      119,115$          98%
E05 General & Admin - Supplies 4,911$                 11,427$            6,515$              133% 11,000$        (427)$                -4%

Dept 400 Sub Totals: 44,955$               69,127$            24,173$            54% 266,978$      197,851$          74%

Dept Board of Directors
E01 Salaries & Benefits 22,268$               28,346$            6,078$              27% 79,761$        51,415$            64%
E03 General & Admin - Services 160$                     -$                  (160)$                -100% 18,400$        18,400$            100%
E05 General & Admin - Supplies -$                     -$                  -$                       800$             800$                 100%

Dept 900 Sub Totals: 22,428$               28,346$            5,918$              26% 98,961$        70,615$            71%

Budget Status - Expense

FY Remain:
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Period: 07/01/24 - 11/30/2024 58%

FY 2024
YTD Actual

FY 2025
YTD Actual

FY 2025
vs. FY 2024

YOY
% change

FY 2025 
Budget

FY 2025
Remaining 

Balance %

Budget Status - Expense

FY Remain:

Summary
E01 Salaries & Benefits 1,260,917$          1,305,866$       44,949$            4% 3,256,312$   1,950,446$       60%
E03 General & Admin - Services 289,158$             335,581$          46,424$            16% 1,025,871$   690,290$          67%
E05 General & Admin - Supplies 31,431$               29,847$            (1,584)$             -5% 103,500$      73,653$            71%
E07 General Production 26,047$               25,819$            (227)$                -1% 154,216$      128,397$          83%
E10 Source of Supply 242,848$             -$                      (242,848)$        -100% 339,571$      339,571$          100%
E15 Pumping 181,795$             287,069$          105,274$          58% 704,546$      417,477$          59%
E20 Water Treatment 163,539$             167,434$          3,895$              2% 621,100$      453,666$          73%
E25 Transmission & Distribution 89,745$               131,057$          41,312$            46% 471,300$      340,243$          72%
E35 Customer Accounts 158,980$             125,673$          (33,307)$          -21% 306,946$      181,839$          59%
E70 Other 1,630$                 434$                 (1,196)$             -73% 1,000$          -$                      0%
E80 Debt Service - Interest 43,819$               40,591$            (3,227)$             -7% 165,759$      125,168$          76%

District Expense Total: 2,489,909$          2,449,372$       (40,537)$          -2% 7,150,121$   4,700,749$       66%

Fund 01 and 02 Combined
E01 Salaries & Benefits 1,260,917$          1,305,866$       44,949$            4% 3,256,312$   1,950,446$       60%
E03-E80 Services & Supplies 1,228,992$          1,143,506$       (85,486)$          -7% 3,893,809$   2,750,303$       71%

 
District Expense Total: 2,489,909$          2,449,372$       (40,537)$          -2% 7,150,121$   4,700,749$       66%
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Period: 07/01/24 - 11/30/2024 58%

FY 2025
YTD Actual

FY 2025 
Budget

FY 2025
Remaining 

Balance %

Fund 01 and Fund 02 Combined

Project Description
C15007 Grace Way Well 31,467$            2,400,000$     2,368,533$       99%
--- Grace Way Well- Grant Reimb -$                 (1,113,830)$   (1,113,830)$     100%
C15021 Purified Recycled Water Recharge -$                 100,000$        100,000$          100%
C16023 Orchard Run Water Treatment Plant -$                 -$                      
C16024 Bethany Tank Rehabilitation 6,966$              169,258$        162,292$          96%
M17011 Meters with AMI 60,019$            52,550$          (7,469)$             -14%
C17011 AMI Technology for Meters -$                 12,750$          12,750$            100%
C19020 El Pueblo WTP Improvements 4,597$              186,008$        181,411$          98%
C19030 Hacienda Pump Station -$                 -$                      
C19070 Vehicle Replacement Program -$                 75,000$          75,000$            100%
C20010 Main Replacement Program - PW 9,153$              652,173$        643,020$          99%
C20040 Admin Building Improvements -$                 20,000$          20,000$            100%
C21010 Well 10 Water Quality Improvements -$                 17,140$          17,140$            100%
C22010 Well 3B Replacement 99,504$            2,299,175$     2,199,671$       96%
C22020 Specialized Operations Equipment -$                 166,536$        166,536$          100%
C23010 SCWD-SVWD System Intertie -$                 2,844,778$     2,844,778$       100%
--- SCWD-SVWD System Intertie - Grant Reimb -$                 (2,250,000)$   (2,250,000)$     100%
C24000 SV Transit Center LID Retrofit - Phase 2 116,989$          1,990,000$     1,873,011$       94%
--- SV Transit Center LID Retrofit - Phase 2 -$                 (750,000)$      (750,000)$         100%
C24010 Glenwood Tank Landslide Evaluation & Repair -$                 495,000$        495,000$          100%
C24020 Monte Fiore Pump Station Rehab -$                 202,412$        202,412$          100%
C24030 System-Wide Pressure Reduction Program -$                 272,960$        272,960$          100%
C24040 Service Line Replacement - Montevalle 16,254$            128,299$        112,045$          87%
C24050 Corp Yard Improvements -$                 28,315$          28,315$            100%
C24060 Solar Installation -$                 25,000$          25,000$            100%
C25000 SCADA Improvements 2025 65,876$            150,000$        84,124$            56%
C25XXX VFD Installation at Orchard WTP -$                 110,000$        110,000$          100%
M25XXX Sequoia Tank Roof Recoat -$                 125,000$        125,000$          100%

Projects Expense Totals: 410,826$          8,408,524$     7,997,698$       95%

Projects - Expense

FY Remain:
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Balance Sheet

Fund 01, Fund 02 and Fund 03 Combined

11/30/23 11/30/24

$8,548,262 $9,388,749
$2,000,100 $1,975,477

$32 $91,252
$1,063,992 $1,304,229

$909 ($13,135)
$888,040 $1,093,007
$227,243 $234,904

$6,799 $16,812
$49,167 $35,000

JPA Investment $153,923 $149,345
$1,218,697 $1,218,697
$1,358,548 $3,336,280
$5,267,833 $5,267,833

$45,395,340 $45,908,923
($27,183,545) ($28,278,656)

$2,020,105 $1,366,327
$115,583 $115,583

$41,131,028 $43,210,626

$38,085 $133,404
$43,819 $40,591
$90,678 $56,010

$888,040 $1,093,007
$994,207 $1,013,357

$77,194 $70,005
$10,089,764 $9,146,010

$1,712,349 $1,187,814
$13,934,136 $12,740,198

$20,391,522 $23,190,237
$5,406,979 $5,545,730

$25,798,501 $28,735,967

$39,732,637 $41,476,165

$1,398,391 $1,734,460

$27,196,892 $30,470,427

$41,131,028 $43,210,626

Investments

Total Liabilities, Fund Balance, and Retained Earnings:

Total Fund Balance and Retained Earnings:

Accrued Interest Payable

Investment in Capital Assets

Customer Deposits

Long-term Liabilities
Deferred Pension Inflows

A/R Customer-Water
A/R - Other

Inventory

Land & Right-of-ways

Depreciation/Amortization

Unfunded OPEB Liability

Unrestricted Net Position

Fund Balance

LT Liabilities Due in 1 Yr

A/P & Accrued Expenses

Deferred Pension Outflows

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance:

Total Retained Earnings:

Assets
Cash

Accrued Interest

Interfund Loan Receivable

Prepaid Expense

Liabilities

Unearned Revenue

Plant & Equipment

Construction-in-progress

Note Receivable

Interfund Loans

Water Rights / Intangible Assets
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Scotts Valley Water District
AP Check Register
November 2024

Vendor Name Check Date Check No. Check Amount Description
ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION 11/7/2024 33500 36,806.66             Transit Center LID - Progress Billing #2
BADGER METER 11/7/2024 33501 4,431.49               Cell Charge for PW/RW Meter Reads - Oct 2024
BATTERIES PLUS BULBS #314 11/7/2024 33502 385.94                   Pump Battery
BENDER ROSENTHAL INC 11/7/2024 33503 47.50                     Sucinto Well - Easement Agreement
BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC 11/7/2024 33504 4,821.86               Water Treatment Chemicals
CITY OF SCOTTS VALLEY 11/7/2024 33505 360.00                   Bacti Samples - Sep 2024
CIVIL CONSULTANTS GROUP, INC 11/7/2024 33506 480.00                   General Engineering
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPT 11/7/2024 33507 4,949.97               Unemployment Benefit Charge - Per Ended 9/30/24
EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL 11/7/2024 33508 840.00                   Lab Testing for Water Quality
FIRST ALARM 11/7/2024 33509 368.32                   Fire Alarm Maint
FIRST ALARM 11/7/2024 33509 190.00                   Fire Alarm - Service Call
GRAINGER 11/7/2024 33510 193.37                   Filters
GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO 11/7/2024 33511 424.42                   Agg Base
ICONIX WATERWORKS (US), INC 11/7/2024 33512 330.76                   Valve
ICONIX WATERWORKS (US), INC 11/7/2024 33512 195.72                   Saddle
ICONIX WATERWORKS (US), INC 11/7/2024 33512 1,961.97               ORWTP - Booster Valve Rebuild Kits
ICONIX WATERWORKS (US), INC 11/7/2024 33512 83.04                     Chamfer Tool
ICONIX WATERWORKS (US), INC 11/7/2024 33512 11.24                     Brass Fittings
ICONIX WATERWORKS (US), INC 11/7/2024 33512 26.34                     Bolts
KBA DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC 11/7/2024 33513 83.48                     Copier Maint / Printing Fees - Sep 2024
MISSION UNIFORM SERVICE 11/7/2024 33514 567.62                   Uniform Laundering / Rental - Oct 2024
MONTEREY BAY ANALYTICAL SERVICES 11/7/2024 33515 988.00                   Lab Testing for Water Quality
NOBEL SYSTEMS 11/7/2024 33516 2,500.00               Water Audit Validation
STEVENSON LANDSCAPING 11/7/2024 33517 300.00                   Landscaping Maint
STEVENSON LANDSCAPING 11/7/2024 33517 750.00                   Landscape Maint
SYCAL ENGINEERING, INC 11/7/2024 33518 5,021.79               SCADA Upgrades - ORWTP
SYCAL ENGINEERING, INC 11/7/2024 33518 1,655.71               SCADA Upgrades - Crescent
SYCAL ENGINEERING, INC 11/7/2024 33518 15,940.91             SCADA Upgrades
UNITED SITE SERVICES 11/7/2024 33519 314.88                   Portable Toilet Rental - ORWTP
UNIVERSAL BUILDING SERVICES 11/7/2024 33520 589.00                   Janitorial Service - 2 Civic Ctr
A T & T 11/21/2024 33521 107.33                   SCADA Auto Modem Dialer
AFLAC 11/21/2024 33522 239.04                   EE Self Funded Supplemental Benefits
ARCTOS EROSION CONTROL 11/21/2024 33523 2,000.00               Bulk PW Meter Deposit Refund
AT&T MOBILITY 11/21/2024 33524 529.12                   SCADA 4G Modem
BAINBRIDGE ALAN 11/21/2024 33525 669.50                   T- AWWA Conference - Mileage and Per Diem - Bainbridge
BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC 11/21/2024 33526 6,935.25               Water Treatment Chemicals
CALABRESE FULLEN TERRY 11/21/2024 33527 9.19                       Refund Check 014602-000, 552  BEAN CREEK RD #139
CITY OF SCOTTS VALLEY 11/21/2024 33528 450.00                   Bacti Samples - Oct 2024
CIVIL CONSULTANTS GROUP, INC 11/21/2024 33529 220.00                   Polo Ranch Plan Review
CIVIL CONSULTANTS GROUP, INC 11/21/2024 33529 480.00                   General Engineering
CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE & MONITORING 11/21/2024 33530 381.25                   Transit Center LID - Labor Compliance Monitoring - Oct 2024
CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE & MONITORING 11/21/2024 33530 568.75                   Sucinto Well - Labor Compliance Monitoring - Oct 2024
CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE & MONITORING 11/21/2024 33530 281.25                   Grace Way Well - Labor Compliance Monitoring - Oct 2024
COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ - DPW 11/21/2024 33531 1,110.53               Landfill Fees
DASSELS PETROLEUM 11/21/2024 33532 2,249.09               Vehicle Fuel - Oct 2024
DU-ALL SAFETY, LLC 11/21/2024 33533 340.00                   Safety Consultation
FASTENAL COMPANY 11/21/2024 33534 47.61                     Marking Paint
FASTENAL COMPANY 11/21/2024 33534 543.45                   Gloves
GASPAR SUSAN 11/21/2024 33535 200.00                   RW Fill Station Deposit Refund
GREENWASTE RECOVERY, LLC 11/21/2024 33536 433.20                   Trash Service - El Pueblo
HAIGHT JUANELLA 11/21/2024 33537 412.45                   Retiree Medical - Nov 2024
HEALTHEQUITY, INC 11/21/2024 33538 32.45                     HSA Admin Fees - Nov 2024
INFOSEND 11/21/2024 33539 4,996.79               UB Statement Printing/Mailing/Inserts
KASSIS JANETTE 11/21/2024 33540 373.15                   Retiree Medical - Nov 2024
KBA DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC 11/21/2024 33541 119.32                   Copier Maint / Printing Fees
LAW OFFICE OF ROBERT E BOSSO 11/21/2024 33542 3,500.00               Legal Counsel - Oct 2024
MCGRAW BERNARD 11/21/2024 33543 64.95                     Refund Check 015036-000, 504  SIDESADDLE CIR
MILLER MAXFIELD, INC 11/21/2024 33544 4,101.67               Communications / Public Outreach - Oct 2024
NORTON PATRICIA 11/21/2024 33545 18.56                     Retiree Vision - Nov 2024
NORTON PATRICIA 11/21/2024 33545 464.73                   Retiree Medical - Nov 2024
NORTON PATRICIA 11/21/2024 33545 33.72                     Retiree Dental - Nov 2024
PACIFIC CREST ENGINEERING, INC 11/21/2024 33546 2,425.40               PW Main Replacement - La Cuesta
PACIFIC CREST ENGINEERING, INC 11/21/2024 33546 1,977.50               Bethany Tank - Engineering
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 11/21/2024 33547 343.71                   RW Electricity
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AP Check Register cont.
November 2024

Vendor Name Check Date Check No. Check Amount Description
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 11/21/2024 33547 46,216.81             PW Electricity
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 11/21/2024 33547 1,799.24               Electricity - 2 Civic Ctr
PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 11/21/2024 33548 70.94                     Calendars
PERRI CHRISTOPHER 11/21/2024 33549 895.80                   Director Medical - Nov 2024
PIED PIPER EXTERMINATORS 11/21/2024 33550 270.00                   Pest Control @ Pump Buildings
REBER DANIEL 11/21/2024 33551 1,433.37               Director Medical - Nov 2024
REGIONAL WATER MGMNT FOUNDATION 11/21/2024 33552 6,463.58               Transit Center LID - Grant Admin - Per Ended 9/30/24
REGIONAL WATER MGMNT FOUNDATION 11/21/2024 33552 8,822.56               Grace Way Well - Grant Admin - Per Ended 9/30/24
STATE ELECTRIC GENERATOR 11/21/2024 33553 2,659.27               El Pueblo Generator - Service / Maint
STILES RUTH 11/21/2024 33554 398.21                   Director Medical - Nov 2024
SWRCB-DWOCP 11/21/2024 33555 60.00                     D2 Cert Renewal - Locatelli
U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 11/21/2024 33556 372.14                   Copier Lease - Nov 2024
UNITED SITE SERVICES 11/21/2024 33557 360.24                   Portable Toilet Rental - Well 10
UNIVERSAL BUILDING SERVICES 11/21/2024 33558 479.00                   Janitorial Service - El Pueblo
ZIM INDUSTRIES, INC 11/21/2024 33559 2,000.00               Bulk PW Meter Deposit Refund

194,580.11           

Wire / ACH Payments
November 2024
Vendor Name Trans Date Check No. Trans Amount Description
ADP 11/8/2024 n/a 336.85                   ADP Workforce Now / Time & Attendance Fees - Oct 2024
ADP 11/8/2024 n/a 426.61                   ADP PW42, PW44 Fees
BlueFin 11/4/2024 n/a 89.30                     Bluefin Civic PayPad Fees - Oct 2024
BlueFin 11/4/2024 n/a 10,375.32             Bluefin CC Processing Fees - Oct 2024
BlueFin 11/4/2024 n/a 71.85                     Bluefin - Municipal Pay Fee - Oct 2024
CalPERS 11/14/2024 n/a 14,043.03             CalPERS Retirement PW 46
Nationwide 11/4/2024 n/a 2,963.48               IRS 457 Plan - Payroll Date 11/1/24
Nationwide 11/15/2024 n/a 2,963.48               IRS 457 Plan - Payroll Date 11/15/24
Wells Fargo Bank 11/27/2024 n/a 16,315.98             WFB CC Payment - November 2024
ACWA/JPIA 11/7/2024 n/a 26,136.00             EE & Retiree Benefits - December 2024
ACWA/JPIA 11/7/2024 n/a 8,419.65               WC Insurance - Qtr ending 9/30/2024
SCHWAAB, INC 11/7/2024 n/a 36.31                     Bank Deposit Stamp
SPRINGBROOK HOLDING COMPANY, LLC 11/7/2024 n/a 18,702.05             Springbrook Annual Maint
SPRINGBROOK HOLDING COMPANY, LLC 11/7/2024 n/a 2,632.00               CC Payment Transaction Fees - Oct 2024
AUTOMATIONDIRECT.COM, INC 11/21/2024 n/a 745.20                   SCADA Upgrades - Southwood Tank
EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL 11/21/2024 n/a 300.00                   Lab Testing for Water Quality
ICONIX WATERWORKS (US), INC 11/21/2024 n/a 11,742.18             Adapters, Couplings, Meter Boxes
MONTEREY BAY ANALYTICAL SERVICES 11/21/2024 n/a 180.00                   Lab Testing for Water Quality
MONTGOMERY & ASSOCIATES, INC 11/21/2024 n/a 4,546.83               Sucinto Well - Construction Management
SCARBOROUGH LUMBER & BUILDING SUPPLY 11/21/2024 n/a 297.24                   Tools / Misc Hardware
SYCAL ENGINEERING, INC 11/21/2024 n/a 5,078.00               SCADA Upgrades
USABLUEBOOK 11/21/2024 n/a 2,965.40               Water Testing Supplies , Gauges

129,366.76           
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WFB Credit Card Payment
November 2024
Vendor Name Trans Date Check No. Trans Amount Description
Adobe 10/11/2024 n/a 266.28                   Adobe License
Amazon 10/18/2024 n/a 87.78                     ORWTP Radio Upgrades
Amazon 10/19/2024 n/a 65.08                     Office Supplies - Coffee
Amazon 10/20/2024 n/a 31.82                     Jockey Box Parts
AT&T 10/4/2024 n/a 110.03                   Backup Internet - 2 Civic Ctr
AT&T 10/4/2024 n/a 119.13                   Backup Internet - El Pueblo
Atlantis Casino Hotel 10/18/2024 n/a 443.31                   T - AWWA Conference - Lodging - Bainbridge
AWWA Events 10/30/2024 n/a 675.00                   T - AWWA Conference Registration - Gillespie
Bobcat of the Bay 10/4/2024 n/a 4,161.94               Excavator Buckets
Chevron - Scotts Valley 10/18/2024 n/a 175.00                   Diesel Fuel
Comcast 10/6/2024 n/a 467.93                   Internet - 2 Civic Ctr
Comcast 10/23/2024 n/a 467.93                   Internet - El Pueblo
CSMFO 10/16/2024 n/a 565.00                   T - CSMFO Conference Registration - Kurns
Davis Instruments 10/10/2024 n/a 220.00                   Weather Station Subscription
Environmental Sampling 10/4/2024 n/a 157.28                   Sampling Supplies
Eriks Deli - Scotts Valley 10/7/2024 n/a 348.42                   Open Enrollment Lunch
EvoGov 10/22/2024 n/a 124.00                   Website Hosting / Maint
Icon Cloud Solutions 10/14/2024 n/a 254.12                   Phones - 2 Civic Ctr
Icon Cloud Solutions 10/14/2024 n/a 84.71                     Phones - El Pueblo
Mailchimp 10/4/2024 n/a 92.00                     Digital Marketing
Mailchimp 11/3/2024 n/a 92.00                     Digital Marketing
Pitney Bowes 10/29/2024 n/a 193.15                   Postage Meter Ink
Planet Orange 10/14/2024 n/a 110.00                   Pest Control - 2 Civic Ctr
Planet Orange 10/14/2024 n/a 75.00                     Pest Control - El Pueblo
Restaurant - Nacho Daddy - Las Vegas 10/28/2024 n/a 101.30                   T- Springbrook Conference - Meals - Ballinger / Vomvolakis
Restaurant - Posh Burger - Las Vegas 10/29/2024 n/a 36.31                     T - Springbrook Conference - Meals - Ballinger
Restaurant - Posh Burger - Las Vegas 10/29/2024 n/a 26.55                     T - Springbrook Conference - Meals - Vomvolakis
San Jose International Airport 10/9/2024 n/a 54.00                     T - Springbrook Conference - Parking - Ballinger / Vomvolakis
Southwest Airlines 10/4/2024 n/a 265.79                   T - Springbrook Conference - Flight - Knutson
Times Publishing 11/1/2024 n/a 178.50                   Monthly Advertising
United Airlines 10/4/2024 n/a 610.74                   T - ACWA Fall Conference - Flight - McNair
VDARA Hotel - Las Vegas 10/28/2024 n/a 40.00                     T - Springbrook Conference - Ground Transportion - Ballinger/Vomvolaki
VDARA Hotel - Las Vegas 10/30/2024 n/a 183.68                   T - Springbrook Conference - Lodging - Vomvolakis
VDARA Hotel - Las Vegas 10/30/2024 n/a 183.68                   T - Springbrook Conference - Lodging - Ballinger
Verizon 11/1/2024 n/a 384.60                   Cellphones / Tablets
Zoom 10/25/2024 n/a 40.00                     Zoom Cloud Recording

11,492.06             
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Enroll in 
WaterSmart

Enroll in WaterSmart
Are you using WaterSmart's autopay and paperless 

billing yet? The District recently made changes to online 

payments, allowing customers to pay through the 
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Grace Way Well 
Project

Virtual Tour of 
SVWD

Keeping Your 
Water Safe

District Holiday 
Schedule

WaterSmart platform. The free platform empowers 

customers to pay their bills as well as monitor their 

water usage in one place.

Pro tip: Anyone previously enrolled in autopay needs to 

re-enroll using the WaterSmart platform. 

Enroll in WaterSmart in a few easy clicks.

Grace Way Well Project to get started 

Construction of the Grace Way Well is set to begin this winter. The Scotts Valley 

Water District project is a 970-foot well that’s designed to produce 500 gallons per 

minute, enhancing the operational efficiencies for the District. 

Water produced from this well site comes from the Butano and Lompico aquifers. From 

the new well, water will be conveyed to the El Pueblo Water Treatment Plant for 

filtration and disinfection before it is pumped into the District’s distribution system.

The project funding is from a $9.45 million grant awarded to SVWD by the State of 

California. The Grace Way Well will be the 6th water production well operated by 

SVWD, including the new Sucinto Well that will go online in early 2025.

Work at the site will begin with removing a former commercial building at the project 

site before the start of well drilling. A temporary sound wall surrounding the site will be 

installed to reduce construction noise in the nearby neighborhood. The 24-hour drilling 

phase for the new well will take approximately four weeks to complete. The overall 

construction period for the well will be approximately four months.

A community open house about this project will be held Wednesday, Jan. 8, from 

4:30-5:30 p.m. in the Santa Margarita Community Room at the Scotts Valley Water 

District, 2 Civic Center Drive in Scotts Valley.

10 - 2



Take a virtual tour 

of SVWD facilities
Let Scotts Valley Water District staff 

show you around sites across the 

District that are essential to delivering 

water to customers each day:

• Hacienda Booster

• Well 10A Water Treatment 

Plant

• Sequoia Tank

• El Pueblo Water Treatment 

Plant

Find all these videos on the District’s 

Facebook and Instagram pages.

Remember, water 

is clean and safe
Are you curious about the quality of 

your water? Spoiler alert: It’s safe and 

clean.

The District's Annual Water Quality 

Report explains where your water 

comes from and how it meets all State 

and Federal Drinking Water Standards. 

The report contains the actual results of 

hundreds of water quality tests 

conducted throughout the year as well 

as other information! 

Read the latest report by visiting the 

District’s website. 
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Friendly reminder that the Scotts Valley Water District's offices will be closed Dec. 23-

27. District customers can access their bills and pay online through the WaterSmart

platform.

View email in browser

update your preferences or unsubscribe
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Rainwater Capture

Thanksgiving 
Holiday

Job Openings

Rainwater capture systems 
With the recent rainfall and temperatures dropping, it's 

the perfect time to consider installing rain barrels or a 

rainwater catchment system. These systems are useful 

for capturing water for later use and saving money.

The District offers rebates for installation of rainwater 

collection cisterns. 
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Update: Cavallaro 
Transit Center 
Project

Learn how to take advantage of the rainwater 

catchment rebate along with other rebates offered.

Pay your bill online during the holidays

The Scotts Valley Water District’s office will be closed on Thursday and Friday (Nov. 28 

and 29) for the Thanksgiving holiday. Customers who want to pay their bills can go 

through WaterSmart, a free online platform that also provides insights for customers, 

sharing tips on how to save water based on their water usage. 

Pro tip: Enroll in Autopay and Paperless Billing using WaterSmart to take away the 

worries about paying your bill on time.

Work with Scotts 

Valley Water

Transit Center 

project continues
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Want to join an agile team that 

innovates and delivers vital services on 

behalf of a supportive community? The 

Scotts Valley Water District, a regional 

leader in sustainable water 

management and a trusted source of 

high-quality water, is looking for you!

Water Facilities Operators support 

water production, distribution, and 

storage systems, as well as their 

maintenance.

Salary range is $5,966-$9,446 monthly. 

Learn more about the position here.

Applications are now being 

accepted. Apply here.

The LID Project at Cavallaro Transit 

Center has been moving along. 

Recently, the contractor finished the 

installation of the storm drain piping 

and poured the pervious concrete patch 

where the hydrodynamic separator was 

installed. All three Modular Biofiltration 

Units are on schedule to be installed by 

the end of November, while site 

restoration and landscape 

improvements will be taking place in 

December.

This project, funded through the state 

Department of Water Resources Urban 

Community Drought Relief Grant 

Program, adds parking lot features to 

reduce stormwater volumes, improve 

water quality and increase groundwater 

recharge through the capture and 

treatment of stormwater from the 

south end of the parking lot.

Get the latest updates on the project by 

following the District on Facebook and 

Instagram.
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Santa undwaterAgencJl
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annoanced at the Boatd of Directors' Meeting in PaIm Desett.
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